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BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT
For the Year Ended 30 Septcmber 2020

It may surprise the reader that 1 should open this report once again by saying | am pleased 10 report a strong set of results for the Group, These are however,
ic and an i { , a fall in net warth of 4.1% from £614m to £589m

A,

very unusual times and against the backdrop of a global
T an 11 hi by the team at Bruntwood.

P

2019 was & very successful year so heading into 2020, we were buoyant. Brunfiood Works and Bruntwood SciTech, our 50/50 JV with Legal and General

1

ly together

Capital, continued to flourish side by side. Despite their individual targets and differing sectors, our two business arcas continue to operate
on a common platform, all while werking towards our purpose of Creating Thriving Cities.

Then Covid-19 hit. Like many other businesses, we had to quickly re-group, pivol, and work to deliver a completely new strategy of stabilising our operations,

pporting our ing our costs, and keeping our team together. Despite the upheaval and turbulence, the strategy saw us accelerate the direction
of our Works and SciTech propositions in & way that supports crucial arcas of the economy going forward. It also saw us get closer to our customers,
deepening our relationships as we navigated the pandemic together and supported each other through it

Since the start of the Cavid crisis - our primary focus has always been the safety and wellbeing of our colleagues and customers. Over the last seven months,
we have made every effort to stay connected with themy; providing a wide range of both call and support and ications. We have sought
10 pass on the benefit of any savings made by Bruntwood in respect of lightly utilised customer space during the Covid period. We continue to speak with all
our customers on a regular basis and support them as far as possible through these challenging times, Where support is required we will seek to reach a fair
solution foreveryone. At 17 D ber 2020 our cash collection rates ined in excess of industry standards; 96% of March quarter rents, 92% of June rents
and 92% of September rents have been collected.

Our proactive approach to existing customers means that we look o help those in difficulty to downsize, nnd in doing so help to minimise our voids. As a
resull, to date we have had little in the way of default, a situation not reflected in the wider Our ptional level of
reflects our focus on providing custamers with the highest levels of service and continues to out-perform industry benchmarks,

To that end, our gross profit excluding i d debtor pravisioning (gross profit less debtor provisioning per note 5) has increased from £62.4m to £65.2m a

4.5% increase, an excellent result in the curvent enviroument. The 16.19 reduction in tumover seen in the year is a combination of a reduction in
development income in the current year, which is inherently lumpier due to its ane-off nature, and a reduction in property services income, with fewer extemal

Iting and ing warks completed in the year. Our core rent and related inconie increased fram £71.3m to £72.7m (excluding increased debtor
provisioning per note 3} The value of the portfolio remained flat year on year at £973.1m with the £21.3m valuation loss in the P&L compared to a £31.9m

to maintain that flat position. We belicve an effective 2% apnal loss

gain in the prior year predominantty resulting from the capital i din the p
is g strong achievement in the cumrent envi and is to the expertise of our team in dcploymg capital 1g new and g

ol v

existing relationships. We ise the i of continuing to invest in our p to inand i over the long term. Qur share

of joint ventures decreased from £3.8m in the prior year to loss of £3.8m in the current year, with joint venture results also impacted by valuation losses in the
year.

Covid-19 has changed the way we live end work forever, to what extent no one really knows, but what we have seen is inrovation come to the fore, the
importance of partnership and the need to adapt at speed. One of the highlights of the year within Bruntwood SciTech has been the establishment of the
Lighthouse Lab at Alderley Park, ane of the UK government’s national testing centres at the forefront of the fight against Covid-19. It took just five weeks
from discussions with Alderley Park based Medicines Discovery Catapult to the first samples being tested - a project that would normally take six months,
The megalab can now process up to 65,000 samples per week, providing much needed diagnostics capability and capacity in tie North West.

We also saw many other businesses from across the Bruntwood SciTech network pivot and adapt in the face of adversity. Place Dashboard quickly switched
their GPS technology to social di ing, whilst ies such as Dicey Tech, Blueberty Therapeutics and Energym all used their 3D printing
equipment 10 produce much needed face shields for the NHS.

We worked closely with our cusiomers to understand how they needed to adapt their spaces, providing guidance and suppont, and ensuring that the communal
followed social di i idelines and had i d cleani hiedules. The impl ion of these additional safety led us to receive a

areas
positive Covid-19 assurance assessment from the British Safety Council, testament to the hard work and dedication of our team. Off the back of this, we've
seen more aud more of our custonters return to their workspaces and feel confident that they're in a safe environment they can work in and enjoy, when

restrictions have aliowed.
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We werc pleased to be able to keep our high sireets end malls nunning smoothly throughout lockdown. Stretford Mall became a community hub for locals
during lockd pporting the need for essential items, as well as the mental need for connection.
We also faunched Spark by Bruntwood Works, our busi support prog: This fi d on supporting core busi functions, which was really

needed at the time, but also helped to connect leaders within our customers® businesscs with one another and to our partners to provide much needed help.

But it has been business as usual, (00, 2nd there have been highlights across our regions. Bruntwood SciTech saw the opening in Pebruary of the new 150,000
5q f1, £30m redevelopment *Qlasshouse’ at Alderley Park, the Practical Complgnion of the £25m, 92,000 sq &t Citylabs 2.0 in July which will be home to
QIAGEN's new European Centre of Excel for Precision Medicine, and the stert of Bruntwood SciTech's new p hip with the University of
Birmingham to develop Birmingham Health 1 ion Campus, providing additional life'science infrastructure for the region.

Grrhyi ol

While navigating the *new nomal’, Bruntwood Works has gone full steam alicad with exciting develop including the Pioneer
- our £50 miiltion j o ing (he buildings of , today. Blackfiiars House reopened in March to create one of the city’s most sought-afer
workspaces. The reimagined 111 Piccadilly reopens shortly as Manchester's * " works and work to revitalise Lowry House, now renamed Bloc,
is well underway, transforming it into ai urban oasis.

Brunwood has always had to adapt and evolve what it does. Tn the last 30 years, we've seen the death of the typical “call centre” style 80°s office, Covid has
now helped us shift to a more progressive way of thinking around our proposition, in particilar where wellbeing, social connection and collaboration,

diversity and inclusion, and inability must be prioritised in order to reinforce business culture and make the workplace somewhere that people want to go.
In challengi jc times, our busi ntodel has historically prospered. New become more discerming, looking far flexibility and value for
moncy, both comer of the d propositi

The ability to attract, retain and expand custonmers is due in part to our constant investment i both product and service. In 2020, despite a difficult economic

backdrop, the Graup d to ise the imp of i in our assets, and invested £16.2m in refurbish and capital imp
projects across the portfolio, and a further £11.6m in development schemes. The Group also invested a further £12.8m into Bruntwood SciTech to fund
ambitious growth within this portfolio, with the SciTech Group i ing £8.4m in refurbish and capital imp and £84.4m in development

schenses.

The company’s financial position is solid, having raised £90.9m through the issue of new unsecured retail bonds in February. The proceeds were used to
repay the existing £50.0m secured retail bond which expired in July, thus not only raising an additional £40.9m of funds at the same interest rate but atso
releasing £70.6m of property security. Through this issuc we have been able to diversify our funding base, meaning we can better manage risk across our
pattfolio and create further headroom in our secured facilities, all of which have a very fortable fevel of headroom, together with £50.0m of

undrawn commitinents.

The strength, depth and breadth of all our funders is key to the ongoing perft of our business, and our flexible customer proposition is only possibie
duc to it being reflected in their approach to lending. As ever, we appreciate the continued suppait of our funders in these difficult times.

‘Being commercinify successful means we can continue to contribute through the Oglesby Charitable Trust, putting back into our cities, and buitding stranger,
mare vibrant places. I his in furn stimulates and attracts better busincsses creating a virtuous circle, fhat we belicve will help Create Thriving Cities.

Given events across the world it is impossible to second guess what is going to bappen to the ccononty over the next year, save to say it is going to be tough.
Those busincsses which will prosper in our industry are those with a customer proposition right at the heart of their strategy. The one thing we have clearly
seen over the last few months is how closety linked and interdependent all aspects of our cilies arc. As a business, we've made it our purpose to Create
Thriving Cities. We are infierently embedded in our cities end our communities - with 8 puépose that is aligied 10 ensuring their ongoing sucéess and
sustainability. Now, miore than cver, we feel a very real sensc of respousibility to support, to enable, to empx and to infl all the ¢! to come

together in order that our cities thrive again as we leam to live with Covid-19.

Ckv;gé-...t_,

C G Oglesby - Chi Officer 17 December 2020
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Business Overview
Bruntwood was set up 44 years aga and is now a leading regional property company. The business develops, owns and manages a portfolio of commercial
property across Greater Manch Leeds, Liverpoot and Birming} The bus has always taken a long term view of investment and has derived real

value it working across the whole property ownership lifecycle. d has a deep i to the success of the citics in which it operates, playing

an important part in their growth - economically and socially, Creating thriving cities has always been at the heart of the business's ambitions.

The focus an our customers has been a key part of the Bi d offer, i ing and providing services and i shead of the market throughout
our 44 year history. The focus on flexible products, the ability to support individual businesses as they grow and create a true sense of business community is
central 1o our propositi The business's 92 colleagues and unique culture are arguably Bruntwood’s greatest asset. The approach to insourcing and

growing talent provides real competitive advantage, allowing us to get close to customers and deliver what they need when they need it.

In 2012 Bruntwood began to create speciclist facilities for science and technology businesses, first as majority shareholder at Manchester Science Park and
then through its ownership of Alderley Park. This has become a significant part of the business and opportunity for growth and. a new Joint Venture,

Bruntwood SciTcch, was created with Legal and General Capital in September 2018. The busi i {0 BrOW new opp ities in new markets and
these grow from our experience of creating p hips, particularly with academic and clinical institutions and local g These will create further
new business models of their own over time.

The Bruntwood Group brings together d SciTech, Works, and Central Services. The business model - comprised of our purpose, brand
and values, prod ial and operational models and systems and processes - are almost entirely commeon across the Group. This creates the greatest

efficiency and allows each area of the business to gain from the expertise and activity of the others. The Group has a series of strategic priorities to support
the division plans of Bruutwood Works and Bruntwood SciTech plus new business apportunities. We believe for citics to thrive they need to; unlock their
innovation poteutial to power their cconomies; to unlock social mobility and health cquality for all; and have sustainability at the heart of their growth
strategy. We create long term, deeply embedded relationships with public, private, academic and health sector partners within cities to help them fusther their
ambitions and drive our purpose activity.

The business has delivery priorities to support our purpase which set ambitious targets and goals, for example:

-4

acity's Y and how our buildings fit into thet landscape. We gim to reduce our environmental impact by

* Asadeveloper we take into

gning, ding and improving our district's buildings with inability at (heir core.

« As & partner to our customers and suppliers we operate our buildings to provide brilliant spaces and conmumities that work well - always performing like
part of their business and caring like part of their family.

As an employer we are committed to creating a healthy where our colleag d d how to shape their world and the one
outside. We are dedicated to developing talent and improving employsbility of the work of the future.

Y

Ly 8

* Asa of cities and ities e ise the ibution which we as & business can make through creating connections and using our finest

assets - our people and our spaces.

Further infarmaticn on our delivery priorities can be found in te following s172 Carporate Governance review.

Section 172
The revised UK C [¢] Code and ires Di to explain how they idered the i of key stakeholders and the broader matters

Ly q

set out in section 172(1) (A) to (F) of the Companies Act 2006 (*s172") when performing their duty to promote the success of the Company under $172. This
includes considering the interest of other stakeholders which will have an impact an the longsterm success of the conipany. This s172 statement, which is
reparted for the first time, explains how B d Group Di ’

+ have engaged with eniployees, suppli and others; and
+ have had regard to employee interests, the need to foster the company’s busi lationships with suppli and other, and the effect of that
regards, including on the principal decisions taken by the company during the financial year.
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Section 172

(8) The likely consequence of any decision in
the long term

The Group undertakes a robust busil planniag process an an annual basis with a four year plan
approved by the board. Performance against this is monitored by the board on a quartedy basis, on
an operational and financial level. The board considers capital allocation as pan of the planaing
process, including triggers for approva! of specific capital spend. The board manitors the rigk fevefs
of its deployment of capital, against pre-agreed levels.

The Bruntwood Group is funded via a mix of medium and longer term funding, spreading the

1 s

clear

refinancing risk. The Group reviews futurc financing requi quarterly,
targets for financial resllience.

(b) The interest of the company’s employees

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to
keep them informed on matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting

the performance of the Group and the p Conp and agt

continued to develop throughaut the financial year, through the increasing use of Universe, our
intemal internet. Business-wide updates also include external activity round-ups, monthly CEQ

updates and hly activity ies. The Group has an established colleague forum
for specific issues that our stafT tell us they think we need to do more.

In 2019 the Group launched a new Diversity & Inclusion strategy which articulates our genuine
i tob ing a workplace known for being truly diverse, where all colleagues’ unique
backgrounds, perspectives, voices, experi end ideas are championed and encoursged.

Ambitious yet achievable targets have been set around having a gender balanced workforee, an age
balanced workforce and an increase in the number of BAME and disabled colleagues. A
programme is undenway to support the achievement of these targets.

The Group was a founding member of the Greater Manchester Good Employer Charter which
refects the strength of our employment practices.

The senior leadership team meet on a quarterly basis, and also utilise colleague leaming Groups;

Groups of peers who meet regularly and share experil and expertise, as well as working

Hah sl
24

to impr d, our ways of warking and our culture.

(¢) The need to foster the company’s

huei 1 1 with \

Our overarching purposc Creating Thriving Cities sees us doing more than just developing

P PP

customers and others

individual buildings but contributing fully to making citics that work for people and businesses.

Delivering this purpose requires strang and Iy beneficial relationships with our
supplicrs and other key stakeholders.

The sharcholders and key I recognise the i of shaping the cities we

live in, we contribute as individuals too - helping to shape the communities we're in by offering
our talent and energy to everything from shaping a city’s loag-term strategy to helping young
people from deprived communities write their CVs.
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d.

The Group regular surveys to d ine the Net Promoter Score

(NPS) of the Group. The results are reviewed by the Board on a regular basis. Additionally, the

Group's internal customer experieice team carry out regular intenial customer interview and

mystery shopper exercises to ensure the Group is utg with in the best possibl
way.
The Group is also running a Voice of the Cu {VOC) progr The VOC prog isa

customer insights programme that tracks the customer journey which allows us to gain and act on
customers feedback ngainst crucial stages in their experience with us. This insight is used to help
shape customer-led decision making at a senior level in the business and helps us to react quickly

to the ever-changing market based on extemal customer insight.

Part of the VOC is loaking outwards as well as inwards, focussing not just on our own customer’s
experience but those of people outside of Bruntwood across our own and other industries. Again
this helps us to sculpt the future of the Bruntwood customer experieuce and stay competitive in the
market.

Itincludes:

- Automated and manual feedback loops

- Deep dives into specific topics or markel trends
- Mystery shopping and quality assurance checks

The Board reviews and approves the Group's Supplier Management policy on an annual basis. The
Board continuausly assess the priorities of thase we do business with, refected in one of our

undedying values ‘Be britliant to work with’. We act with integrity, respect and a passion for |

collabaration, s we know the greatest outcomes benefit everyone.

(d) The impact of the

pany’s

As a busi we can only help to create thriving Cities if we deliver sustainable and

on the ity and

) ious spaces that support the wellbeing of our customers, conununities and
colleagues. That's why we are embedding a culturc of sustainability across all our ways of working
in order to limit our impact on global warming and mitigate the effects of climate change.

In October 2018, Biuntwood became the first commercial property partaer to join the Net Zero
Carbon Commitment, dedicating ourselves to operating at net zero carbon by 2030, Along with this
commitment, we will also be advocating others to do the same by helping our customers and
cammunities become ntore aware of their carbon emissions, and supporting thent to take action.

Working with tho Carbon Trust, we have developed our own science based targets, creating a
‘carbon budget’ for the business to support the Paris Agreemeat global target of restricting global
warming to 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels. There will be a reduction in our carbon emissions,
creating positive benefits for health outcomes and air quality. We'll sce a new approach to both
construction and office waste, with more circular economy principles, recycling and reduced waste
to landfill, and our water usage will be reduced.
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- The Bruntwood Group partners with ambitious environmentel, arts and cultural organisations that
make & positive change to our communities. Partnerships include bluedot, Grand Union, Leeds
i ional Festival, I Her and Enterprise Nation,

Every year, the Bruntwood Group and the Oglesby family shareholders donate over 10% of asmual
distributable profits to meet these aims (assessed by the directors to be gross profit net of
2dministrative expenses). This year that figure is £4,925,000 (2019: £5,137,000). These donations
have supported activities across our regions, including projects based around the environment, the
arts, medical research, education and tackling social inequality. As well as raising money for our

d charities, B d colt have also donated over 1,229 hours {2019: 2,800} of
their time through Cares Days, vol ing in their local itics. By donating their time,

skills and talents to the regions and communities we operate in, our colleagues are helping our

cities to continue to thrive,

(¢) The desimbility of the p The reputation of the company and maintaining high standards of business conduct are under-
intaining @ reputation for high standards | pinned by the Group's strategy. One of the Group's values is being brilliant to wark with, for
of business canduct ff and fi

The Group has ambitious targets for the workforce with a good platform to build from; a gender
pay gap of 10% and 40% of the Board being women. The Group launched its Diversity and
Inclusion strategy in 2019, and has & clear programnte undenvay to support the achicvement of the
Diversity and Inclusion targets.

(f) The need to act faily as b The B d Group i to adopt a family owned and managed structure. M J Oglesby
members of the company. founded the Bruntwood Group and his son, C G Oglesby, took over as Chief Executive in 1999.
The Br d Group's activitics are directed through a single unified carporate management and
coatrol structure which is sun by the board of Directors (the “Group Board™). The Group Board is
ible for designing and ing the gic direction of the B d Group, major

funding and acquisition decisions and commiling the carporate management and operational

structure of the Group. The Group Board contains Oglesby family b longsid family
directors.

Review of business
Fiuancial highlights for the year ended 30 September 2020 are:

¢ Loss befare tax of £18.9m (2019: Profit before Tax £51.8m)

« Sharcholders’ Funds decrease of 4.1% to £588.6 m (2019: £614,1m)
* Tumover of £134.4m (2019: £160.1m)

* Gearing of $3.6% (2019: 48.7%)

The Group has had another successful year against a difficult ecanomic backdrop, across all of our core markets with over 204,000 sq ft of leasing
transactions taking place in the period. The Group secured over 73% of customers at lease break or expiry.

The loss before tax is largely driven by the revaluation loss in the year, and additional debtor provisioning of £4.5m as debts have been paid slower but we

4

our i provisioning policy. Both are indicative of the i i driven by Covid-19. The 16.1% reduction in

.

have

of a reduction in mcone, ised in line with progress on the Circle Square MSCP and Hotel and a reduction in

P

turnover is a

property services income, with fewer extemal consulting and ing warks d in the year. Excluding delxor provisioning, rent and related income

q

has increased 2.0% year on year, with occupancy remaining steady and marginal increase in headline rents on new deals. Shareholders’ funds have
4.1% on 2019, based on the loss generated in the year less dividends paid of £1.0m.
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larty pleasing given the challengi ditions from the onset of Covid-19. We ended the year with a cash inflow in

Cash performance in the year was p:
the year of £9.1m (2019: £3.1m), meaning we ended the year with significant cash reserves, Whilst 2 portion of this is due to the retai) bord re-finance in the
year, some this is duc to taking advantage of g h Howing deferral of VAT p fongside careful of opcrating and capital
expenditure. The Group also accessed the coronavirus job retention schenie available. However, the majority of the support related to building specific staff,

and these savings hiave been passed on to our custoners via the service charge.

B d Works d the £50m transformational refurbish progs of Pioneer buildings in 2019, the lsunch of Blackfriars House,

Manch ’s £5.5m rbis! followed in March 2020, This saw the new ground floor 1 d with an independent coffee shop operated by Bean,
co-working. reading room that doubles up as a podcast studio and o fireplace. The building is already 83% let, with 11 new customers.

Over £4.5m has been invested into 111 Piccadilly, Manchester in 2020, with pleti of the refurbish due to plete in D ber. This includes an
extemal lighting scheme which has been in place throughout 2020, the ‘gem® on the exterior, an integrated ground floor coffee shop securing a hero retail
letting with Ancoats Coffec and the first co-working space in Europe to be accredited with the WELL Building Standard by The Intemational WELL Building
Institute.

Bloc, located on Marble Street in Manchester is the third pioncer building undenvay with its refurbishment. Renovation works undenvay to develop a ground
floor annex that will include the addition of 180 new flexible desks, 12 new spaces in the coworking studio and 12 modem meeting rooms that have fully
d hi-tech audio-visual equi This follows the refurbishment of the serviced suites on the upper floors and are 85% let. In addition the buildings

quip

2.4

will bring a local independent coffee shop into the ground floor, a new cinema raom, bespoke spaces for community pop-up events, and shared event and co-

warking spaces to help foster callaboration.

This year planning was approved at Booths Park, Knutsford to create & new purpose-built office building for loca! busi PontSwigger. Booths No.6
comprises more than 65,000 sq ft of floor space across two storeys, complete with landscaped gardens that align to the surroundings in 220 acres of parkland
at Booths Park in Knutsford.

furbish | d project and recruitment

and

Comwall Buildings Birmingham, a grade [l-listed building, completed its £1.3 million
specialist TXM Projects to its community of like-minded businesses.

In Leeds Bruntwood Works secured the biggest property deal of 2020 with TTEC, who took more than 22,000 sq ft in newly-refurbished West Gate creating
400 jobs for the City. The move also coincided with the completion of d Works’ ive refurbish of West Gate, which has seen 33,373 sq ft
of space transformed across the fourth, fifth and sixth floors into high-quality, flexible warkspaces with a clean, modemn finish.

Over the last three years we've been working in a joint venture partnership with Trafford Council to regenerate the former Kellogs Site. In September 2020,
Bruntwood Works and Trafford Council secured planning for the new Trafford neighbourhood, Lumina Village. The site which is over 12 acres and is home
to University Academy 92 (UA92), will create a new vibrant, mixed-use ncighbourhood. Lumina Village will consist of 750 new homes, 200,000 sqft of
office space, a primary school, & new park and a 100-bedroom hotel.

In October 2019, Bruntwood Works extended the existing joint veuture parmership with Trafford Council to acquire Stretford Mall and Stamford Quarter in
Altrincham for £50m with a focus on town centre development to evolve the communities in town centres and the contribution they play in supporting cities
thrive. This was as a direct result of the successful UA92 jaint venture with the development of K Site.

In Swretford 300,000 sq ft of retail space exists, with the long term vision for Stretford ta create a new neighbourhood, with homes and a new “old fashioned™
high street at its heart, The commitment was there at the outset to engage with the local community throughout the scheme to ensure the space created can be
public ttation with the Stretford ity in person in ber 2019 and

4,

used by all. Therefare over the last twelve months we've been
of people ding the drop-in sessi In ber 2020 *virtual® public consultation was faunched with the wider Stretford

P

q.

Jonuary 2020, with th
masterplan and Arca Action Plan which has been well engaged with so far.
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The Stamford Quarter has retained positive footfall levels throughout 2020, including during the pandemic, consistently over 35,000 people. The additions of
Stutter and Twitch, with their ‘Caravan of Love’ serving up susteinable coffee, cakes and vinyls and The Plant Shop to the Altcincham high street, has
provided a shifl in the blead of customers in the Stamford Quaiter.

Bruntwood SciTech cantinued its strong performance in the year, with a number of notable highlights. In March, Alderdey Park was chosen by the UK
government as the ocation for one of three national ‘Lighthouse Lab’ testing centres to support the fight against Covid-19. The 24,500 sq i laboratory was
refurbished and the first clinical sample tested in just five weeks; a process that should typically take approximately six months. Providing the capacity to test
up to 65,000 samples per day, the Lighthtouse Laboratory at Alderley Park has added much nceded diagnostic infrastructure to the UK life science sector,
significantly increasing the UK’s capability and capacity now and for the future.

Fuither investment was commiited by the UK government to Alderley Park in August with {he announcement by the Ministry for Housing, Communities and

Local Govemment (MHCLQ@) of £5m grant funding to the Medicines Di y Catapult 10 establish a new Validation Centre of Excel} as part of its
‘Getting Building Fund' for shovel-ready projects. The new Validation Centre of Excell for i ive di ics, biomarkers and compl dici
will help to develop the UK's onshore diagnostic capabifity and capacity and the associated supply chain. The Centre will include a range of new specialist
laboratories, including a Catcgory 3 biosafety facility for the testing of new diagnostics, biomarkers and therapeutics for highly-infecti h

including respiratory viruses such as Covid-19.

This was also the year that the 150,000 sq f, £30m re-development of Glasshouse -a new hub for forward thinking, i ive tech busi pleted and
opened. Glasshouse is already homic to a rapidly expanding cluster of over 20 businesses working areas such as Al, digital animati ¢ p
and digital health.

In Manch ignifi progress was made with both Citylabs 2.0 reaching practical completion in July and Noi (232,654 sq ) and No2 Circle Square
(155,317 sq ft) on track to achieve Practical Completion in January. The 92,000 sq ft Citylabs 2.0 has been 100% pre-let to global molecular diagnostics
company QIAGEN to house the company's Global Centre of Excellence for Precision Medicine. Citylabs 2.0 sits at the heart of the Citylabs campus - a

i isi dicine and health i ion hub of i ional gic imp for the UK. The Citylabs campus is located on the Manchester

University NHS Foundation Trust estate. part of Manchester's Oxford Road Corridor innovation district and is set for further expansion with the d
of the £35m, 125,000 sq f Citylabs 4.0 which received planning permissiou this year and subject to construction start date is set to complete in 2022,

At Circle Square, multinational ion equip and software services specialist, Hilti d their relocation to Nol Circle Square, taking 42,000

sq fi of office space for their new headquarters. This follows on the back of tettings announcements of 30,000 sq ft to Hewlett Packard Enterprises and 15,600
sq ft to Mills and Reeve alsa in No! Circle Square and 5,000 5q fi to Accenture at No2 Circle Square.

Significant progress was also made in the year on retail lettings with deals announced to a new UK-first retail and leisure concept *Canvas’, The new lifestyle
venue made up of three unique elements: Canvas Kitchen - a 100 seater day/night restaurant, Canvas Club - a members anly lounge and Canvas Events - a
flexible sublerrancan events space for up to 400 people has taken 8,800 sq ft of space in the basement and ground floors of Nol Circle Square. Boutique
b pe Trib3 d plans ta take 7,000 sq R far their new fagship studio and HQ in Cirele Square’s North Pavilion, while new market hall
and dining destination Hello Oriental (another first for Manchester) took 6000 sq & in the South Pavilion.

At Manchester Science Park, £4m of grant funding was awarded by the Ministry for Housing, C ities and Local G (MCHLAQ) to kick start
the £21m, 91,000 sq & re-development of ‘Base’ as part of its ‘Gefting Building Fund® for shovel-ready projects. The new build which has already been
granted planning permission is aimed at supporting R&D i ive busi working in the frontier sectors of Industry 4.0, digita! technology, advanced
materials, engincering and low carbon. It will also incorporate low carban technologies including solar technology, demand side response technology, smart
BMS, Multi Gigabyte connectivity, and infrastructure for future battery refiance capability. Base will provide ial i { rkspace and a
dedicated vocational training space designed to provide young people from disadvantaged backgrounds with techinical skills waining aligned to industry 4.0
and enable access to highly skilled jobs. It will form a vital part of the region’s i i ipporting the growth of the knowledge economy and

help to create over 1,600 high vatue jobs.
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In October 2020 a new partnership was db d SciTech and the University of Binningham to develop o new 10 acre life science park

for the Midlands. The £210m Birmingham Health I ion Campus will support the creation of up to 10,000 new high vatue jobs and provide a 400m gross

vajue add boost to the local economy aver the next 10 years, and was awarded a total of £14m funding from Birmingham City Council, Greater Bimmingham
and Solihull LEP and the Government's *Qetting Building Fund® to help the region *Build Back Better’. Phase 1, set for completion in 2023 will provide
130,000 5q ft of world-leading commercial office, lab and incubation space for companies working in sectors such as genomics, biopharma and digital health.
A pre-let has been agreed to The University of Birmingham for 60,000 sq ft to house their Precision Health Technologics Accel (PHTA) providing

incubation space, wet and dry labs, clean rooms, prototyping and maker space, and the Birmingl Precision Medicine Centre and Healtheare Technologies

Innovation Hub.

Atl tion Birming} lanni ission was granted for the development of £30m, 110,000 sq ft Enterprise Wharf. Set to become Bruntwoud

P 8 P

SciTech's end Birmingham’s first ‘smart-enabled’ building, E ise Wharf will provide much needed grow-an and expansion space for larger digital and

tech businesses at the Campus and help to attract significant inward investmeat to the regicu.

In Liverpool, Bruntwood SciTech's £12m acquisition of a 25% stake in Sci Liverpool alongside Liverpool City Council, University of Liverpool and

Liverpool John Moores University completed at the height of the Coronavirus crisis on 1 May 2020. The i is intended to help progress the delivery
of a pipeline of projects including plans for a new entrance and reception at Liverpool Science Park and a 160,000 sq ft office for the creative and scientific
sectors, al No$ Paddington Viilage.

In October 2020 Bruntwood announced the creation of three new businesses Unify, Unify Energy, aiid CubicWorks - to overhaul the way it delivers facilities
management, fit-out and utilities services to clients.

Unify witl provide a range of integrated facilitics Luti includi hanical and electrical repairs and mail energy, ing and

folio to cut-costs.

specialist cleaning, while Unify Energy will provide energy as a managed service to help piers ocross

s property p

Meanwhile, CubicWorks will offer construction, refurbishment and fit-out services alongside mechanical and electrical design and installation.

Key performance indicators

The Group measures perfomance using & number of financial and financial perfc Key are d below, the majority of
which can be derived directly from the financial statements.

* Deliver a sustainable, low double-digit sharcholder return over time, via a combination of both income and capital returns, whilst generating positive cash
flows for reinvestment and asset growth. In 2020, we returned a net worth decrease of 4.1% from £614.1m to £588.6m. Whilst measures have worsened on

PR

the prior year, these are indicative of the envi we are ing in, and our i to continue il ing in our p

over the longer tem,

Maintain appropriate levels of gearing and net debt, whilst delivering growth within the Group. Gearing stood at $3.6% in 2020 compared to 48.7% in
2019. Net debt was £521.3m compared to £474.0m. Gearing has increased on the prior year, reflecting the retail bond refinance in the year enabling us to
better diversify our funding base and create further headroom in our secured facilities.

* lmpr lationships with and strive for i in net p scores. Our d Group net p: scare in October 2019 was 38.

Net promotor scores range from -100 to 100, with a pasitive score being a good result. Our target going forward is to increase this, our next survey will be
in 2021,
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Principal visks and uncertainties

The Covid-19 pandenric is the most sighificant extemnal risk currently facing the Group, impacti 1l and liers, The primary o

risks for the Group ccntre aroind the micro economic supply and demand factors affecting the markets in which it operates, which have also been impacted by

the Covid-19 pandeniic. The group continues to monitor the impact of Brexit on cu oll and liers. Thiese are primanily the fevel of |

L g

demand for ial property (which in turn is dependant on the economic success of the city egions) which diciates occupaicy and rental
levels, the investor demand for property which dictates the value put on these rental Iévels and the supply of property which is & function of the level of
development activity. In turn, these micro factors are impacied by the macro fictors in the wider ecoriomy, particularly levels of GDP, infletion and interest
rate levels,

The directors consider the Qroup's concentration of offices in strategic city regions to be one of its key streagths. The Group has 44 years of foctised
hanging market conditions and necds. The directors belicve that the scale of the
d service offer provides a competitive advantage and enables the Group to pro-actively mitigate these
risks. With an ambitious plan to grow the business it remains important that the Group continues with its policy of investing in its people and systems and

experience within this market that allows it to react quickly to

. o i

to and

its flexible app

ging end ivity in its appr

As with any property company that is substantially debt fi d the di ider one of the key financial risks to be the ability of the Group to meet the

qui of all ing facilities, and to fully refi L ing facilities at their maturity date. The directors regularly revic\v
compliance with the covenants and the Group is proud that it has not breached any fi ial in its 44 year history. The Group have modelled the
intpact on loan covenants of reduced incante and sigs ifi decreases in valualiens of prop Theré are no y bréaches forecas).

65% of the Group's bomowing facilities have two or more yéars until expiry and we are in talks with our lendefs about extension or refinance of those
expiring earlie. The continued success of the Group in securing new facilitics, its ability to diversify sources end tenure of funding and the close relationships
with all of jts current fenders give the di fid: that these finaucing risks will inuc to be mitigated effectively.

APPROVED AND SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

O,.w ) L—-\

€ G Oglesby - Director 17 Deceinber 2020
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The directors present their annual report on the affairs of the Group, together with the financial statements and auditor’s report, for the year ended 30
September 2020.

Going Concern

The directors have asscssed the impact of the curvent uncentainty around Covid-19 on all aspects of the business, focussing specifically on- operstions and
cashflows of the Group. This stress-testing included assessing the levels of cash and available finance within the Group ing a very signifi ducti

in tumover on the basis of customer default or payment plans, reduced lettings and increased vacations at break and expiry. This has been offset by factoring
in identified and actioned savings in operational expenditure, and a review and cut of itted capital expenditure where Y.

The di have aiso idered the i iability of finance by modelling the impact on loan covenants of reduced income and significant decreases
in valuations of propertics. Even idering "", likely d id ios there are no breaches forecast.

Based on g these fc and itivitics the di have luded that the Group is a going concem and accordingly have prepared the
financial statements on this basis. Further details regarding the adoption of the going ern basis can be found in note 1 of the financial statements.

Fi ial risk 8! bjectives and policies

The Group's activities expose it to a number of financial fisks including credit risk, cash flow risk and liquidity risk. The use of financial derivatives is
govemed by the Group's policies approved by the board of directors, which provide written principles on the use of financial derivatives to manage these

£ 1

risks, The Group does not use derivati for

1
s P

I. Cash flow risk
The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates. Exposure to interest rate risk is maneged in two ways, firstly by
securing low borrowing margins and secondly by hedging the Group's variable interest rate exposure.

H. Credit risk
The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables, and investments.

The Group's credit risk is primaril ibutable to its trade ivables. The p d in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful
bles. An all for impai is made where there is an identificd loss eveat which, based on pi xperi is evid of a reduction in

the recoversbility of the cash flows.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative fi ial i is limited & the parties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.

§il. Liguidity risk
In order to maintain liquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ing operations and fisture developnients, the Group uses a mixture of tong-

term and short-tesm debt finance.

Further details regarding liquidity risk can be found in the Strategic Report on pages 4 to 1.
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Dividends

A dividend of £1.0m (2019: £4.2a1) was paid during the year.

Directors

The directors shown below have held office during the whole period from 1 October 2019 to the date of this report.
C G Oglesby

K Vokes

Dircctors® indemnities

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its di and the di of iated panies which were made

ying

during the year and remain in force at the date of this report. - . -

Disabfed employces

Applications for employ by disabled persons are slivays fully considered, bearing in mind the abilitics of the applicant concemed. In 2019 the Group

Jaunched a new diversity and inclusion strategy which articulates our genui i tol a workplace known for being truly diverse, where all
1! * unique backg; ds, p ives, voices, experi and idcas are championed and ged. Ambitious yet achievable targets have been set

around having a gender balanced workforce, an age balanced workforce and an increase in the number of BAME and disabled colleagues. In the event of

bers of staff b ing disabled every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Group continues and that appropriste training js arranged 1t

is the policy of the Group ang the Campany that the training, career develop and p ion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be ideatical to

that of other employees. :

Employees

The Group employed an average of 921 peaple during the year ended 30 September 2020 (2019: 759). Further details of employment costs can be found in
the notes to the financial statements.

All enaployees are eligible to join the Group’s contributory pension scheme. The Group's all eniployee share ownership scheme is open to all employees who
have completed ane year of employment. Each year the company sets aside reserves out of profits to meet both these liabilities and those of the directors’ share
option scheme and at 30 September 2020 the lative vatue d to £2.3m (2019: £4.0m).

For further information around the Group's commitments to employees please see the s172 disclosure within the Strategic Report.

Health and Safety

Across the Group 8 program of conti impr is impl, d to reduce health and safety risks in all buildings on a prioritised basis to ensure cost
effective and pragmatic risk management. There is a rolling program of required statutory inspections and risk to ensure safe buildings for our

! i and visitors, Al employees receive tailored health and safety training to undertake their role to minimise the risk of

Pploy

adverse health effects or injury. The reporting of all incidents includi isses and hazard identification is encoureged in order to learn lessons wherever

possible. Despite the wide range of refurbishment, development and facilities management activities undertaken by Bruntwood and its contractors there have
been no Prohibition or Improvement Notices issued during the year by the Health & Safety Executive.

Energy and carbon reporting
We have reported on all sources of GHG emuissions and energy usage as required under The Large and Medium-Sized Campanies and Groups (Accounts and
Reports) Regulations 2008 as amended. The GHG Protoco! Cory A ing and Reparting Standard has been used throughout and we have used our

monthly billing data (from both fiscal and submetered supplics) to collate the data for this report. Emissions factors have been taken from the 2019 UK
Govermnment Conversian Factors for Company Reporting.

The isational boundary includes all of the office space that Bruntwood’s own staff occupy , plus the common areas of all of our buildings. The let-able

Tuded 1

areas arc excluded whether or not the sites are fully occupicd. Bruntwood's vehicle fleet (whether leased or owned) is i within the

boundary.

scope 3 emissions related to emaployee use of their own vehicles, where they claim mileage

tuded

We have measured our scope ) and 2 emissions and also i

\ Aq ol

allowance. We have also reparted on the ission and distribution losses inted with our p a3 a voluntary measure.
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GHG emissions and energy usage

GHG emissions and energy usage data for period 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2020

Mandatory Information

Total annual en consumption used (o calculate emissions in kwh 47,226,472
Total annual gas consumption for combustion purposes in kWh 29,478,176
;I'c(al annual purchased electricity consumiption in kWh 16,827,433
| Total annual transport fuel use in kWh 920,863
Esmissions from combustion of fuel for heat in tCO2e (Seope 1) 6,006
Emissions from combustion of fuel for transport purposes in (CO2e (Scope 1) 220
Process/Fugitive Emissions in tCO2e (Scope 1) 322
Emisslons front purchased electricity (Scope 2) 3,923
Emissions from the Transport & Distribution of purchased electricity (Scope 3) 337
Emissions from business travel in rental cars or employee-owned vehicles 146

where company is responsible for purchiasing the fuel in tCO2e (Scape3)

 Total gross CO2¢ based on above 10,954
Intensity ratio: chosen ratio is tCO2e per M2 0.053 1CO2 per M2

The intensity ratio chosen was tCO2e per metre squared. This is the recognised intensity ratio for our sector and allows for consistent measurement over time,

As this is the first year of ing, there is no ive figure available for the previous year, It should be noted that our portfolio includes both general

office space and laboratory/R&D facilities and as such whote building intensities vary greatly.

Bruntwood was the first property company in the UK to commit to becoming net zero and as such we have an ongoing energy reduction strategy that reflects
our target of operating at net zero carban by 2030. This includes:

Creating science based targets across the Group.

Compli with the requis of B d SciTech's ‘Green Loan' which has a number of energy efficiency requi Under the conditions of

the Green Loan, Bruntwood SciTech secures a discount on its cast of funding if it achicves a8 BREEAM Excellent rating for the three new buildings on

their expected campletion in 2021, in eddition to ing so-called ‘Green M dums of Und ding’ with picrs in which they agree support

on-going environmental best practice in the use of the facilities. In addition, Brantwood SciTech has committed to delivering an investment of £3.5m into
bly-linked imp: across its estate, covering things such as Combined Heat and Power, storage batteries and snall-scal ble energy.

It has also pledged to reduce the energy intensity of its portfolio by mare than 10% over the lifetime of the loan.

! ing a net zero that sets out specific targets for both embodied and operational targets in our buildings. This includes a target to move

away fron) the use of fossil fuels for heating where possible.
Electrification of our pool car flect,

Smart buitding trials to integrate a range of sensor
Incorporating energy saving principles and smart energy into our refurbist progr panticularly our Pioneer
Oun-going solar installation programme .

hnology and optimise our buildi systems are undenway in several areas..

Incorparating sub- ing as standard practice across the partfolio.

Committing to developing asset plans for each building with itted 1 in energy efficiency measures.

Tmplementing 1SO50001 and hope to achieve certification in early 2021, 1ISO 50001 is an i tonal dard gnising organisations that enh
their cnergy per by impl ing an energy system based on a modet of continual improvement,

Within Bruntwood SciTech at Alderley Park we have supported a multi miltion pound. investment in converting the existing oversized and inefficient gas
powered, High Pressure Hot Water heat network to Combined Heat and Power.
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Auditor
Each of the directors at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

(i) so far as the directar is aware, there is no relevant audit infc ion of which the s auditos is

P

5 and

(ii) the directors have taken afl the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the company's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be i d in d: with the pn

P

of s418 of the Companics Act 2006. Deloitte LLP has indicated its
willingness to be reappointed for another term and appropriate arrangements have been put in place for them to be deemed reappointed as auditor in the
absence of &l Anirual General Meeling. B

APPROVED AND SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

C G Oglesby - Director l 17 December 2020

i
H
i
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The di are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial in d with applicable law and lati
Company law requires the di to prepare financial for each financial year. Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom G lly Accepted A ing Practice (United Kingdom A ing Standards and applicable law),

including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”. Under company law the directors nust not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company

for that period. In preparing these iaf the dil are required to:

*  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

= make jud and i i that ere

5 8

« state whether applicable UK A ing Standards have been followed, subject to any material depar

P 4]

and prudent; - .
and explained in the financial

statements; and

¢ prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to p that the company will inue in

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable 2ccuracy at any time the financia) position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companics Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the ptcventién and detection of fraud and
otlter irregularitics.

"8 website. Legislation in

P o) o g sl ded

The di are ible for the mai and i ity of the corp and on the

the United Kingdom g ing the

and dissemination of financial may differ from fegislation in other jurisdicti

prep




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

Report on the sudit of the financial statements

Opinion .
In our opinion the fi ial of B d Group Limited (the 'parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’):

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 30 September 2020 and of the group's loss for the year then
ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted A ing Practice, including Financial Reparting Standard 102
*The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Iretand”; and

* have been prepared in d with the requi of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial stat ts which compri

* the consolidated profit and loss account;

* the d and parent company balance sheets;

> the lidated and parent company of changes in equity;

* the lidated cash fow and

* the related notes I to 26.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom A ing Standards, including Financial

Reporting Standard 102 “The Financiel Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom G Aty Accepted A ing

Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in d: with 1 ional d: on Auditing (UK} (1SAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those

standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of cur report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s {the ‘FRC’s) Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance

with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We are required by I1SAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where:
« the directors’ use of the going cancem basis of ing in preparation of the financial is not appropriate; or

« the di have not disclased in the financial any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doutt about the group’s or the
parent compariy's ability to continue to adopt the gaing concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve montlis from che date when the financial
statements are suthorised for issue.

‘We have nothing to report in respect of these niatters.
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Other information .

The directors are respansible for the other information. The other inf i ises the inf¢ ion included in the chief executive’s report, other than

P

the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinien on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent othenwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance canclusion thereon.

.
In connection with our audit of the iaf our responsibifity is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
infc ion is fally i i with the financial or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material § i ies or app: ial mi , wé are required to di whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or & material mi of the ather infc ion. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of divectors

As explained more fully in the di ibilities the directors are respansible for the preparation of the ial and for being

satisfied that they give a true end fair view, and for such internal control as the di d ine is y to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from materia) misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the fi inl the di are for ing the group’s and the parent company's ability to continue as a going concemn,

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors cither intend to liquidate the

group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financis! statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issuc an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasanable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an sudit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise fram fraud or error and are

dared

ial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could bly be d to infl the ic decisions of users taken on the basis of

P

these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
wwv.fre.org.uk/suditorsresponsibilities. This description fonms part of our auditor's report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on ether matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinian, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

P Y q

+ the inf ion given in the gic report and the report of directors for the firancial year for which the are prep is

with the financial statements; and

"

« the strategic report and the report of di have been prepared in d with applicable legal

q

Lpai

d in the course of the audit, we have

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent pany and their

not identificd any ial mi inthe gic report or the report of directors.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited
by us; or

« the parent company fi

* certain discl of di " 1 § ified by law are not made; or

P

are not in ag; with the ing records and returns; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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Use of our report

This report is madc solely to the conipany’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Campanies Act 2006, Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we .miglll state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permiitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members i
as a body, for our audit work, for this repost, or for the opinions we have formed.

Jonathan Dodwaorth (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor .
Manchester ;
United Kingdom

17 December 2020

|
|
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

TURNOVER
Cost of sales
GROSS PROFIT

Administrative expenses
OPERATING PROFIT

Share of results of joint ventures
(Loss)/gain on ion of i P
Loss on interest rate derivatives

Other exceptional profit
Gain on the sale of investment praperties

PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST AND TAX
Net interest payable

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Tax on (loss)/profit

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
All of the above relate to continuing operations.

There are no items of other comprehensive income in the curreat or prior year and th

presented.

Note

BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

2020 2019
£000 £000
134,375 160,066
(23,455) (98,719)
60,920 61,287
(25,144) (23,572)
35,776 37,715
(9,843) 3,777
@21,291) 31,940
(588) (3,256)
- 579
852 2,364
4,906 73,119
(23,821) (21,321)
(18,915) 51,798
(5.898) (2.695)
(24,813) 49,103
no of hensive income has been

20



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 30 September 2020

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

- Investment in Joint Ventures

CURRENT ASSETS

. Debtors: amounts receivable within-one year
Debtors: amounts receivable after more than one year

Cash at bank and in hand

CREDITORS: amounts falling duc within ane year

NET CURRENT ASSETS/ (LIABILITIES)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more than one year

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital

Share premium

Capital redemption reserve
Other reserve

Profit and }oss account

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

The fi ial of Br

and signed on its behalf by:

C G Oglesby - Director

Note

1

13

15 .
15

BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

2020
£000

48

973,121

127,358

1,100,527
[ -115323
23217

26,288

164,828

(101,995)
62,833

1,163,360
(551,066)
(23,668)

588,626

50,652
1,736
11,580
(32,841)
557,499

588,626

2019
£000

83
973,664

112,124
1,085,871
- 102,805 -

30,782
17,142

150,729

(159,950)
©.221)

1,076,650
(444,586)
(17,956)

614,108

50,582
1,491
11,580
(32,841)
583,296

614,108

d Group Limited, company number 02825044, were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 December 2020
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BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 September 2020

Note 2020 2019
£000 £000
FIXED ASSETS
Investnients 13 55,098 55,048
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 15 6,273 5,823
Cash 1 !
T N - . ) 6214 ST 5,824
CREDITORS: amouits falling due within one year 16 : (1,848) (1.172)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 4,426 4,652
NET ASSETS 59,524 59,700
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 21 50,652 50,582
Share premium 21 1,736 1491
Capital redemption reserve 21 6,442 6,442
Profit and loss account 2} 694 1,185
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 59!524 59,700
The loss for the financial year dealt with in the fi ial of the parent pany was £491k (2019: £988k profit).
The financial of B d Group Limited, company number 02825044, were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 December 2020

and signed on its behalf by:

.
C G Oglesby - Director




BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN EQUITY
Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

Called-up €apital

share Share redemption Other Peofitand Totsd
eapital p@lun -yeserve reserves loss secount: equity
2000 ‘4000 £000 £000 £000 €000
At} October 2018 50,648 1491 11,489 (32,841) 539,38y 570,138
Profit-for.the financial year - - . ‘ 49,103 49,103
Fotal:comprehensive tncome - B - - 49,103 49,103
Dividends paid- : - - . (#;158) (#,158)
Share buy back ($2)] - 9k - (1,000) (1,000)
Share issue 28 - . . . 28

- K130 September 2019 and: _ ,
‘¥ October 2019 50,582 1491 11,580 (32;841) $83,296 ‘614,108
Loss for. the financial year - - . - (24,813) (24,813)
Fotaleomprehensive expense X N z - EYEIE) @es1)
Dividends peid- - - - . (984) (984)
Share fssue 70 248 . B . 318
At 30 September 2020 50,652 1,_732 31,580 (32,843) 557499 589,626
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 September 2020

BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

Calledup . ~ Capital

share Share redemption Profit and Total

capital premium reserve loss account equity

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 October 2018 50,645 1,491 6,351 5355 63,842

Profit for the financial year - - . 988 988

Total comprehensive income - - - 988 988-

Dividends paid - - - (4,158) (4,158)

Share buyback on - 91 (1,000) (1,000)

Share issue 28 - - . 28
At 30 September 2019 and

1 October 2019 50,582 1,491 6,442 1,185 59,700

Profit for the financial year - - - 493 493

Total comprehensive income - - - 493 493

Dividends paid - - - (984) (984)

Share buyback - - - - -

Share issue 70 245 - - 315

At 30 September 2020 50,652 1,736 6,442 694 59,524
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For tlie Year Ended 30 September 2020

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Taxation paid-
Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash fiows (used in) / from investing activities
Investiment in joint ventures

Disposal of investment property

Disposal of subsidiary

Disposal of developmient fand

Disposal of tangible fixed assels

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Distribution from joint

Loan to joint venture

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Net interest paid

Dividends paid

Repay of short term ings
Repayment of medium term bank loan
Draw down of long term foan

Repayment of long term foan

Draw down of existing short term borrowings
Draw down of existing medium term loan
Proceeds of retail bond issue

Repayment of retail bond

Buy back of listed debt

Draw down of new short term loan

Draw down of new medium term loan
Expenses incurred on loans

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

Note 2020

£000

2 35,708
460
35,248

(25,937)
3,692

(18,978)

861
(17,723)
(58,085)

(21,929
10 (984)
18 (3.000)
18 (10,491)
10,000

(3.142)

353

18 90,873
18 (50,000)
18 (3.950)
1,687

18 25,895
(3329)

31,983

9;146

17,142

26,288

2019
£000

19,390
455
18,935

(4,067)

718
5,500
12,3587
(20,966)
(20,142)
(26,600)

(18,654)
(4,158)

(7.806)

(2.967)
4,825
40,000
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BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

NOTLS TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 30 Septcmber 2020

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General information and basis of preparation
The principal accounting policies adopted are described below. They have all been applied consistently throughout the current and preceding year.

Bruntwood Group Limited (the company) is a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act. The address of the company's

registered office is shown on page 1.

The principal activities of the pany and its subsidiaries ( her the group) and the nature of the group's operations are set out in the Strategic

Report on pages 4 to 11.

The company is a private company limited by shares and is registered in England and Wales,

The financial are prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include certain items at fair value, and in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102) issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

Bruntwood Group Limited meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 102 and has therefore taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions

available to it in respect of its separate financial statements, which are p d alongside the consolidated financial ts. Exemptions have
been taken in relation to presentation of a cash flow statement.

The functional currency of the group is considered to be pounds sterling, because that is the currency of the primary econoniic environment in which

the

pany op The lidated fi | are also p in pounds sterling,

Golng concern

The group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set out in the Strategic
Report on pages 4 to 11, The Strategic Report describes the financiel position of the group; its borrowing facilities; its financial risk management
objectives and its financial instruments and hedging activities.

fundi : 1

As highlighted in note 18 to the financial statements, the group meets its g req a bination of draft facilities, bank loan

<3

facilities and a retail bond issue.

The directors have assessed the impact of the current uncertainty around Covid 19 on all aspects of the business, focussing specifically on the
operations and cashflows of the Group. This stress-testing included assessing the Jevels of cash and available finance within the Group assuming a

very significant reduction in turnover on the basis of customer default or pay plans, reduced lettings and i d at break and expiry.
This has been offset by factoring in identified and actioned savings in operational expenditure, and a review of uncommitted capital expenditure where
necessary.

The Group has taken advantage of the governments VAT deferral scheme and the Coronavirus Job R ion Sch VAT payments were deferred

in March through to June and are expected to be repaid prior to March 2021.
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BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Golng concern (continued)

The loans within the group's subsidiaries are subject to loan to valuc and interest cover covenant tests. The directors have also considered the on-
going availability of finance by modelling the impact on loan covenants of reduced income and significant decreases in valutions of properties. Even

considering reasonably likely downside scenarios there are no covenant breaches forecast. At year end the group had £26.3m of cash deposits.

The Group has, at the date of this report, sufficient existing financing available with £50m headroom on banking facilities and £68.9m of unsecured
properties. This, together with the proven ability to generate cash from trading activities, the performance of the Group's Strategic Portfolio, and its
leading market positions and geographical spread, provides the di with the confid, that the Group is well placed to manage its business

risks successfully in the context of cusrent financial conditions and the general outlook in the global economy. After reviewing the Group’s annual

budget, plans and financing arrangements for the next three years, the directors consider-that the Group has ad reso to inue operating,
and accordingly these financial have been prepared on a going concemn basis.

Basis of consolidation

The group fi ial lidate the fii ial results of Bruntwood Group Limited and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to 30
September 2020. The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed of in the period are consolidated for the periods from or to the date on
which control passed. Busi binations are d for under the purchase method. All intre~group tr i bal , €Xp and

i are eliminated on lidati

Joint ventures

Joint ventures are accounted for using the gross equity method, The consolidated profit and loss account includes the group's share of the joint
venture's operating profit, interest and tax while the group's net share of the assets and liabilities of the joint venture are shown in the cansolidated
balance sheet.

Turnover
Tumover represents property rental, service charge, associated incame and the appropriate allocation of rental premi provided in the normal
course of business, net of VAT. Turnover is accounted for an an accruals basis and amounts invoiced in advance relating to the next accounting

period are included in deferred income within the balance sheet. Trading property sales are accounted for on a legal pleticn basis. D J

is recognised in dance with ion ¢ policy below.
Construction Contracts
Where the of a ion can be esti d reliably, and costs are recoghised by reference to the stage of comptetion of
the contract activity at the balance sheet date. This is normally d by the proportion that costs incusred for wark performed to date

bear to the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, is gnised to the extent of contract costs incurred
where it is probable they will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. When costs incurred
in securing a contract are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, they are not included in contract costs if the contract is
obtained in a subsequent period. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract e, the expected loss is gnised as an

expense immediately.
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BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible fixed asscts - Goodwill
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings and businesses, representing any excess of the fair value of the consideration given

over the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired is capitalised and written off on a straight line basis over its useful economic life.

Negative goodwill is included in the bal sheet and is credited to the profit and loss account in the periods in which the acquired non-monetary

assets are recovered through depreciation or sale. Negative goodwill in excess of the fair value of the non-monetary assets acquired is credited to the

profit and foss account in the periads expected to benefit.

Intangible fixed assets - Brands . N . - . —_ .- . —_ - -
Brands are included at cost and amortised in equal instalments over & 10~year period which is their estimated useful life. Provision is made for any
impairment. No change has been made to the useful life of intangible assets previousty amortised under UK GAAP as allowed by FRS 102 section

19, as the useful life disd d a reliabl :

Fixed assets (excluding investment properties)
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment, Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets, i

other than investment properties, at rates calculated to write ofT the cost or valuation of each asset over its expected useful life, as follows:
« Fixtures, fitting & IT equipment 10% - 30% on cost; and
*+ Motor vehicles 25% - 30% on reducing balance.

Investment properties
Investment properties for which fair value can be measured reliably without undue cost and effort on an ongoing basis are measured at fair value
annually with any change recognised in the profit and loss account.

Praperties in the course of devel are included in the bal sheet at cost subject to provisions if the di deem rel t. Cost includ

interest and directly attributable overheads whilst the property is in the course of development.

Disposal of investment properties

The profit or loss on disposal of investiment properties are reparted separately within the consolidated profit and loss, in accordance with Section 5 of
FRS 102. Profit or loss is calculated as net proceeds less book value at the time of disposal. The profit or loss an disposal is recognised upon legal

completion,
Government grants
Government grants are recognised based on the accrual model and are measured at the fair value of the asset received or receivable. Grants relating

to revenue arc recognised in income over the period in which the related costs are recognised.

Govemment grants received in respect of operational fixed assets are credited to a deferred income account and released to the profit and loss

account over the usesul economic fife of the asset to which they relate. Government grants received on the ction of in prop are

credit to a deferred income account.
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BRUNTWOQOD GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government Grants (continued)

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic the group tock ad ge of the Caronavirus Job R ion Sch which lted in the group receiving a
govermnment grant to cover the salary costs of a number of employees. The receipt was recognised in the profit and loss account and offset against
staff costs. The group also took part in the VAT Deferral Scheme which was d by the government to assist businesses with their cash flow
during the Covid-19 pandemic. Therefore the VAT which were payable in March through to June 2020 were deferred with the total

.

amount pay at year end included in other ion and social security amounts due (see note 16).

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation (Jegal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the group will

be required to settle that obligation and a reliable esti can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best esti of the iderati quired to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the abligation. Where a provision is d using the cash flows estimated to settle the

present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of nioney is material).

When some or all of the econamic benefits required to settle a provision are expected ta be r d from a third party, a receivable is recognised:

as an asset if it i3 virtualty certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

t Warrantles
Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations are ised at the bal sheet date, at the directors' best estimate of the expenditure

required to settle the group's obligation.

Investments
Investments are shown in the accounts at cost less any provisions for impairment.

Current asset investments
Current asset investments are initially measured at cost then remeasured to fair value at each year end, with any gain or loss recognised in the profit

and loss account.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial lisbilities and equity instruments are classified ding to the sub of the arrang entered into. An equity

instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

i Financial asseis and labilities

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at tr ion price (including tr ion costs), except for those financial assets classified
as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value (which is 1y the ion price excluding transaction costs),
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. If an arrang: i afi ing tr ion, the fil ial asset or fi ial

liability is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument. Financial assets
and liabilities are anly offset in the balance sheet when, and only when there exists a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
the group intends either to settfe on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Debt instruments which meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method:

a) The contractual retum to the holder is (i) a fixed amount; (ii) a positive fixed rate or a positive variable rate; or (iii) a combination of a positive or
a negative fixed rate and a positive variable rate.

b) The contract may provide for repayments of the principal or the retum to the holder (but not both) to be linked to a single relevant observable

A

index of general price inflation of the currency in which the debt instrument is denominated, provided such links are not leveraged.

c) The contract may provide for a determinable variation of the retum to the holder during the life of the instrument, provided that (i) the new rate

-

satisfies condition (a) and the variation is not contingent on future events other than (1) a change of a contractual variable rate; (2) to protect the
“holder against credit deterioration of the issuer; (3) changes in levies applied by a central bank or arising from changes in relevant taxation or law;

or (i) the new rate is a market rate of interest and satisfies condition (a). . -

d) There is no contractual provision that could, by its terms, result in the holder losing the principal amount or any interest attributable to the current

=

period or prior periods.
Contractual provisions that permit the issuer to prepay a debt instrument or permit the holder to put it back to the issuer before maturity are not
contingent on future events, other than to protect the holder against the credit deterioration of the issuer or a change in control of the issuer, or to

€,

-~

protect the holder or issuer against changes in levies applicd by a central bank or arising from changes in relevant taxation or law.

Debt instruments that have no stated interest rate (and do not constitute financing transaction) and are classified as payable or receivable within one
year are initially measured at an undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration expected to be paid or received, net of impairatent.

Commitments to make and receive loans which meet the conditions mentioned above are measured at cost (which may be nil) less impairment,

H.  Derivative financial Instruments

ial i to interest rate moventents. The group does not hold or issue derivative financial

The group uses derivative fi to reduce

P

instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at

each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss i diately. Hedge ing for derivatives is not adopted.

lil.  Fair value measurement

The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price for an identical asset in an active market. When quoted prices are unavailable, the price of a recent
transaction for an identical asset provides evidence of fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances or a
significant lapse of time since the transaction took place. If the market is not active and recent transactions of an identical asset on their own are not a

good estimate of fair value, the fair value is estimated by using a valuation technigue.
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BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases

Rental income from leases is recognised on a straightdine basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an

incentive to sign an operating leasc are similarly spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The itional exemption available in respect of

incentives offered for leases entered into before the date of transition to FRS 102 has been applied.

Assets held under finance leases and other similar contracts, which confer rights and obligations similar to those attached to owned assets, are
capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and their useful lives. The capital elements of future iease
obligations are recorded as liabilities, while the interest elements gare charged to the profit and loss account over the peried of the leases to produce a

constant rate of charge on the balance of capital repayments outstanding.

Rentals under operating leases are charge on a straight-line basis over the lease tenn, even if the payments are not made on such & basis. Benefits

received and receivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are similarly spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Pensions
The group makes discretionary contributions to personal pension plans in respect of all employees. The-amount charged to the profit and loss account
in respect of the pension cost are the contributions payable in the year. Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions

actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments on the balance sheet.

Taxation
Current UK corporation tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or

h

ively d by the bal sheet date,

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of afl timing differences that have originated but not d at the bat sheet date where transactions or

events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a8 right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date.

Timing differences are differences between the group's taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial statements that arise fram the inclusion

ol

of gains and losses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the fi

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be garded as
more likely than not tlere will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and laws that have been ar ively d by the bal sheet date that are expected to

apply to the reversal of the timing difference. Deferred tax relating to non-depreciable property, plant and equip d using the r

modet and investment property is measured using the tax rates and allowances that apply to sale of the asset.

Where items recognised in other comprehensive income or equity are chargeable to or deductible for tax purposes, the resufting current or deferred (ax
expense or income is presented in the same p of comprehensive income or equity as the transaction or other event that resulted in the tax

expense or income.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and the Group intends either to settle on

a net basis or to realise the assel and settle the liability simultaneously.
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BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if: a) the group has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities;
and b) the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
ar different taxable entities which intend either to settlc cumrent tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Bank borrowings and finance costs
Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafis are ded at the p ds received, net of direct issue costs. In accordance with Section 11 of FRS 102,

finance costs of financial liabilities are recagnised in the profit and loss account over the term of such instruments at a constant rate on the carrying

amount,

Borrowing costs which are directly attributable to the constiuction of tangible fixed assets are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation begins when both finance costs and expenditures for the asset are being incurred and activities that are necessary to get the asset ready

for use are in progress. Capitalisation ceases when sub ially all the activities that are necessary to get the asset ready for use are complete.

Share-based payinents
Fair value is measured by reference to the net assets of the group at year end less a discount for a non-controlling interest in a private company. The

group has a choice to issue either cash-settled share-based or equity-settled share based payments to certain employees. Given the lack of readily
available market for the shares they are accounted for as cash settled and as such a liability equal to the portion of the employment services reccived is
recognised at the current fair value determined at cach balance sheet date for cash-settled share-based payments.

Development in progress
Amounts recoverable on long-term contracts, which are included in debtors, ase stated at the net sales value of the work done less amounts received as
progress paymeits on account. Excess progress pay are included in creditors as pay on Cumulative costs incurred net of amounts
transferred to cost of sales, less provision for i ies and anticipated future losses on contracts, are included as fong-term contract balances in
stock.

’
Service charge
Service charges are collected from customers quartetly in advance to cnable the sharing of costs of common services in buildings between more than
one occupier. Sexvice charge collecti ons and iated expendi are held on the balance sheet and reconciled annually. Part of the service charge
collected from customers over the duration of their lease is to fund large scale mai projects in buildings. This collection to fund service charge

major projects is held on the balance sheet, and at any time a building can be in a surplus or deficit position depending on the level of collection or

works required.

2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application. of the group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the dil s are required to make jud, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

d in the period in which

The estimates and underlying ptions are reviewed on an ing basis. Revisions to ing esti are
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and

futurc periods.
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BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Tnvestment Properties
A key source of estimation uncertainty relates to the valuation of investment properties, where a valuation is obtained annually, either by
professionally quatified external valuers, or by the group's own intemal qualified staff. The cvidence to support these valuations is based primarily

are inh ly subjective and so are

on recent, comparable market transactions on an arm's length basis. Key assumptions applied to the
subject to a degree of uncertainty, the key assumptions applied are described in further detail below,

A key driver of the property valuations is the terms of the leases in place at the valuation date. These determine the cash flow profile of the property
for a number of years. The valuati dj from these rental values to current market rent at the time of the next rent review (where a

typicat lease allows only for upward adjustment) and as leases expire and are replaced by new Jeases. The current market level of rent is assessed

leasing tr ions and iations,

based on evidence provided by the most recent

The nominal equivalent yield is applied as a discount rate to the rental cash flows which, after taking into account other input assumptions such as

and costs, g the market value of the property. The equivalent yield applied is d by veft to market ions for

similar properties and takes into account, amongst other things, any risks associated with the rent uplift assumptions. The net initial yield is
calculated as the current net income over the gross market value of the asset and is used as a sense check and to compare against market transactions
for similar praperties. The valuation outputs, along with inputs and assumptions, arc rcviewed to ensure these are in line with what 8 market
participant would use when pricing each asset. The reversionary yield is the retum received from an asset once the estimated rental value has been

captured on today’s assessment of market value.
Value of investment property as at 30 September 2020 is £962.0m (2019: £963.6m). Further information can be found in note 12.

Critical Accounting Judgements
The directors do not consider there to be any critical accounting judgements in preparing these financial statements.
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BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

3 TURNOVER 2020 2019
£000 £000

Rental and related income 72,705 71,311
Debtor Provision (4,291) (1,102)
Service charge income 22,331 21,401
Property services income 10,129 19,753
Utilities Income 15,910 18,878
Development income 17,591 29,825
134,375 160,066

All tumover arises from the group's principal activity in the United Kingdom and excludes Value Added Tax. Items billed in advance/arrears are carried

forward/carried back in order that the revenue is recognised in the period in which the service is provided.

4 INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND EMPLOYEES

2020 2019
£000 £000

Directors' remuneration

Emoluments . 503 619

Remuneration of the highest paid director:

Emoluments 384 435
2020 2019
£000 £000

Key management personne! remuneration

Emoluments 2,814 2,442

The number of directors and key management personnet who:

Had awards receivable in the form of shares under a long term incentive scheme i0 8

' Average Average

Average hi; ber of y ployed (inchuding directors) 2020 2019

Administration and 472 484

Customer service staff 335 275

Cleaning Staff 114 -

92) 759

The company itseif has no employees, other than the directors.

2020 2019

Staff costs during the year (including directors) £000 £000

Wages and salaries 24,268 24,594

Sacial security costs 2214 2,505

All Employec Share Ownership Plan (49) 1,165

Pension costs 1,309 1,078

27,742 29,342
The directors of B d Limited are idered by the group to be key ag; P 1. Br d Limited is the direct 160% owed subsidiary

of Bruntwood Group Limited. Directors are remunerated for their services to the group and it is not practicable to ailocate this between group companies.

On 1 April 2020 in accordance with TUPE regualations 265 employees were transferred from third party cleani Breanheath Limited and

Time-Out Services Limited to Bruntwood Management Services Limited, a 100% owned subsidiary of Bruntwood Group Limited. On | October 2020 in
accordance with TUPE regulations 359 employees were ferred to Unify Managentent Solutions Limited, and 51 employees to CubicWorks Limited.

Aol

Unify Management Solutions Lintited end Cubic Works Limited are two new businesses sitting outside the B d Group ing facilities

management and project delivery services respectively.
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BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended 30 Scptember 2020

Share-based payments

The company runs, for all employees after a qualifying period of scrvice, an Al Employee Share Ownership Plan (AESOP), which provides for the
granting of shares on an annual basis for all eligible niembers of staff based upon performarce targets.

In respect of the above schemes the group has recorded liabilities at the intrinsic values of £1.7m (2019: £2.4m) which are included in creditors due

within one year (note 16) and £0.6m (2019: £1.6m) which are included in creditors due after more than one year (note 17).

5 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - . . - 2020 2019
’ £000 £000

(Lossy/Profit before taxation is stated after (charging)/crediting:
Depreciation (1,883) (1,453)
Amortisation of intangible assets (35) (35)
Rent paid on operating leases (990) (745)
Movement in market value of share options 1,653 (1,165)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets (43) (109)
(Loss)/gain on revaluation of inv t properti (21,291) 31,940
Loss on interest rate derivatives . (588) (3,256)
Gainon Juation of listed i . 30 -
Gain on the sale of investment properties 852 2,364
Increase in debtor provision (4,291) (1,102)
The analysis of auditor's remuneration is as follows:
Fees payable to the company's auditor for the audit of the conpany’s annual accounts 1 10
Fees payable to the company’s auditor and their associates for other sesvices to the group
- The audit of the company's subsidiarics p to legislati 209 192
Non-audit fees
- Other non-audit fees - 264 85

In 2020 £59k of the other non-audit fees related to real estate services, £83k related to tax advisory, £72k related to tax compliance services and £50k

related to other audit related services. All non-audit fees in 2019 are in relation to real estate services.

The disclosures above are for the group. The company is not required, in its individual fi fal to discl P ly information about
fees for non-audit services provided to the company b the lidated financial are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated
basis.

6 EXCEPTIONAL PROFIT/(LOSS)

During the year the group disposed of Haw Bank House for gross proceeds of £3.8m. The profit on disposal of £0.9m rep p ds net of all
disposal costs minus the book value on disposal.

In the prior year the group disposed of two properties for combined gross proceeds of £12.8m. The profit on disposal was £0.4m representing
proceeds net of disposal cosls less book value on disposal. In 2019 the group also disposed of land for £5.5m generating a profit on disposal of £1.9m.

The other exceptional profit in the prior year relates to additional consideration of £0.6m received in relation to the sale of 50% of Bruntwood
SciTech Limited.
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BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

7 FINANCE COSTS (NET)

2020 2019
Investment income £000 £000
Deposit account interest 235 227
235 227
2020 2019
Interest payable and similer expenses £000 £000
Bank loans and overdraft 6,330 5,939
Amortisation of finance costs 2,029 2,618
Interest payable on retail bonds maturing 2020 1,604 3,000
Interest payable on retail bonds maturing 2025 3,264 -
Interest payable on loans maturing 2022 5,336 35,435
- Interest payable on loans maturing 2023 - - - o - © o539 T : 510
Interest payable on loans maturing 2026 1,038 -
Interest payable on toans maturing December 2031 3,916 3,957
Other banl/ financing charges - 89
24,056 21,548
Finance costs (net) ) 23,821 21,321
Borrowing costs capitalised (note 12) : 87 -
Borowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 2.5% being the rate of interest applicable to develop specificb ings.
8 TAX ON (LOSS)/PROFIT
Analysis of the tax charge
The tax charge on the profit for the year was as follows:
2020 2019
Corporation tax £000 £000
Group taxation payable tax based on (loss)/profit for the year 186 -
Adjustinents in respect of prior years - group - - 66
Total current tax 186 66
Deferred tax
Timing diffe igination and ) 1,848 1,869
Adjustments in respect of previous periods 1,374 760
Effect of change in taxation rate 2,490 -
Total deferred tax charge 5,712 2,629
Tax charge on (loss)/profit ) 3,898 2,695

Factors affecting the tax charge
The tax assessed for the year is lower (2019: lower) than the standard rate of corposation tax in the UK. The difference is explained below:

2020 2019
£000 £000
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before tax (18915) 51,798
‘Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities at standard rate of 19.0% (2019: 19.0%) (3,594) 9,842
Factors affecting the charge:
Disallowable expenses/(Non-taxable incone) 1,405 379
Recognition of capital losses available to offset lised revaluation gains 1,562 (5,853)
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of previous periods - current - 66
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of previous periods - deferred 1,374 760
Difference in tax rate 2,274 (219)
Diffe oncl ble gain calculations not recognised in deferred tax 1,809 (1,556)
Joint venture profits 1,000 (743)
Interest receivable in tax computation not in accounts 68 19

Total tax charge for the year 5,898 2,695




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

8 TAX ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

Ou 11 March 2020 the UK Chancellor announced that the main rate of UK corporation tax would remain at 19% with effect from I Apsil 2020 (instead of
17% as previously anounced). This change became substantively enacted on 17 March 2020. Accordingly, all deferred tax assets and Jiabilities have been
calcutated on the basis that they reverse in future at the 19% tax rate (2019: calculated at the 17% tax rate) .The overall effect of the change is to increase the

q def,

deferred tax debit in the profit and loss account and i the

domiciled group.

9 PROFIT QF THE PARENT COMPANY

d tax liability by £2.5m. Bruntwood Group Liniited is a 100% UK

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the profit and loss account of the parent company is not presented as part of these financial
statements. The parcrit company’s Joss for the financial year was £491k (2019: profit £988k). The audit fee payable has been bome by another group

company and not recharged.

10 DIVIDENDS PAID 2020 2019
£000 £000
Final divideuds paid on ordinary shares at {.2p per share (2019: 10p per sharc) 984 3918
Final dividends paid on equity preference shares - 240
984 4,158
11 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Group Negative
Goadwill Brands goodwill Totat
COST £000 £000 £000 £000
At |- October 2019 and 30 September 2020 308 151 (5462) (5,003)
AMORTISATION
At 1 October 2019 278 98 (5,462) (5,086)
Amortisation for year 20 15 - 35
At 30 September 2020 298 113 (5,462) (5,051)
NET BOOK VALUE
At 30 September 2020 10 38 - 48
At 30 September 2019 30 53 - 83
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12 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Investment properties Fixtures, fittings
Long &IT Motor

Group Freehold Jeasehold quiy hicl Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
COST OR VALUATION
At 1 October 2019 731,526 232,036 20,279 490 984,331
Additiens 22215 115 2915 - 25,245
Disposals (2,570) - (48) (10) (2,628)
Revaluation (17,045) (4,246) - - (21,291)
At 30 September 2020 734,126 227,905 23,146 480 985,657
DEPRECIATION
At I October 2019 - - 10,388 279 10,667
Charge for year : ’ - - T 1837 T T46 ~1,883
Disposals - - (6) 8) (14)
At 30 September 2020 - & 12,219 317 12,536
NET BOOK VALUE
At 30 September 2020 734,126 227!905 10,928 163 973,121
At 30 Septemnber 2019 731,526 232,036 9,891 211 973,664

The historical cost of the group properties at the year end is £649.6m (2019: £629.2m) for freehold properties and 184.8m (2019: £183.2m) for leasehold

properties. Other fixed assets are stated at cost.

In praperties includes capitalised interest in aggregate amounting to £87k (2019: £23k).

The freehold and leasehold i rties held by the group at 30 September 2020 were valued as at 30 September 2020. The properties held by

Prop

Bruntwood LG Limited, amounting to £281.8m of the total group portfolio were revalued by our external valuers Jones Lang LaSalle Limited, generating

a revaluation loss in the period of £1.2m. The remainder of the portfolio was valued i tly by the Di ' Valuation Panel g ing &
loss of £20.1m. The valuations were undertaken in accordance with 'Red Book Principles’ and were conducted on the basis of Market Value.

The Directors' Valuation Panel of the p d. k a detailed valuation appreisa) of al) of the group's properties on 8 by basis.

The Di ' Vatuation Panel comprises of the following:

C G Oglesby, Chief Executive Officer, Bruntwood Limited, qualified as a Chartered Surveyor in 1993 and has 3} years' experience in the property

investment industry.

K J Crotty, Chief Financial Officer, Ct d A has 18 years' experience in the property investment industry.
Investment properties are valued by adopting the ‘investment method® of valuation. This approach involves applying capitalisation yields to cusrent and
future rental streams net of income voids arising from ies or reat-free periods and iated running costs. These capitalisation yields and future

rental values are based on comparable property and leasing transactions in the market using the valuers’ professianal judgement and market observation.
Qther factors taken itto account in the valuations include the tenure of the property, tenancy details and ground and structural conditions. For further.

information pleasc see note 2.
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12 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Group
Fixed assets, included in the above, which are held under hire purchase contracts or finance leases are as follows:
Motor
vehicles
COST £000
At I October 2019 464
Disposals (10)
At 30 Scpteinber 2020 454
DEPRECIATION -
At t October 2019 257
Charge for year . . CoT 46
Disposals (8)
At 30 September 2020 295
NET BOOK VALUE
At 30 September 2020 159
At 30 September 2019 207
13 INVESTMENTS
Group AESOP
lavestment in
own shares
£000
COST
At [ October 2019 1,014
Shares allotted in year 69
/At 30 September 2020 1,083
PROVISIONS/ (ACCRETION) .
At October 2019 (1,014)
Shares allotted in year (69)
At 30 September 2020 ( 15083!
NET BOOK VALUE
At 30 September 2020 and 30 September 2019 -
Investment in
Joint Ventures
£000
Share of net assets as at 1 October 2019 112,124
Investment into joint ventures in the year 25938
Share of profit for the year (9,843)
Distributions 861
Share of aet assets at 30 September 2020 127,358

A detailed analysis of the Group's share of results of joint ventures is not provided as they are not material to the Group. Investments in joint ventures entail
a 50% share of Bruntwood SciTech Limited and Trafford Bruntwood LLP. In October 2019, in a 50:50 partnership with Trafford Borough Council,
Bruntwood Group invested £25.5m into two new LLPs; Trafford Bruntwood (Stamford Quarter) LLP and Trafford Bruntwood (Stretford Mall) LLP.

Tangible fixed assets held by Bruntwood SciTech Limited Group amount to £545.7m (2019: £445.6m), Trafford Bruntwood LLP £17.6m (2019: £20.2m),
Trafford Bruntwood (Stamfard Quarter) LLP £29.5m (2019: nil) and Trafford Bruntwood (Stretford Mall) LLP £15.0m (2019: nil).
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13 INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED})

Shares in
Company subsidiaries
2020
£'000
COST AND NET BOOK VALUE
At 1 October 2019 55,048
Additions 50
At 30 September 2020 55,098
Country of Effective Proportion of
Subsidiaries - - incorporation Activity - . ~ordinavy shaves held.. - - —
Afflecks Ltd England and Wales Shopping Emporium Management 100% *
Bruntwood 2000 Alpha Paortfolio Ltd England and Wales Property investment 100% *
Bruntwood 2000 Beta Portfolio Ltd England and Wales  Property investent 100% *
Bruntwood 2000 Fourth Properties Ltd England and Wales Property investinent 100% *
Bruntwood 2000 Holdings Ltd England and Wales Holding company 100% *
Bruntwood 20600 (NW Regen) Ltd England and Wales Property investment 100% *
Bruntwood Albert Square Limited England and Wales Property investment 100% *
Bruntwood AV Holdings Limited England and Wales Halding company 100% ¢
Bruntwood AV Limited England and Wales Property investment 100% *
Bruntwood Bond 2 Ple England and Wales Investment company 100% *
Bruntwood Circle Square 14 Limited England and Wales Development company 100% *
Bruntwood Construction Limited England and Wales Construction company 100% *
Bruntwood Comuwall Street Limited England and Wales Property investment: 100% *
B d Develop Holdings Ltd England and Wales Holding company 100% *
Bruntwood (Didsbury TP) Limited England and Wales Development company 100% *
Bruntwood Estates Alpha Portfolio Ltd England and Wales Property investment 100% *
Bruntwoad Estates Beta Portfolio Ltd England and Wales Property investment 100% *
Bruntwood Estates Holdings Ltd Eagland and Wales Holding company 100% *
Bruntwood Estates Ltd England and Wales Holding company 100% *
Bruntwood Investments Plc England and Wales Investment company 100% *
Bruntwood LG Holding Limited England and Wales Holding company 100% *
Bruntwood LG Limited England and Wales Property investment 100% *
Bruntwood MBS Retail Limited England and Wales Property investment . 100% *
Bruntwood Management Services Lid England and Wales Management company 100% *
Bruntwood NQ Holdings Limited England and Wales Holding company 100% ¢
Bruatwood Paragon A Limited England and Wales Donnant 100% *
Bruntwood Paragon B Limited England and Wales Domuant 100% *
Bruntwood RB Limited England and Wales Property investment 100% *
B d MBS Devell Ld England and Wales Property investment 100% *
Bruntwood Mecting Rooms Limited England and Wales Meeting room manag, pany 160% *
Bruntwood Sixth Propertics Limited England and Wales Property investment . 100% *
Bruntwood Trafford Holdings Limited England and Wales Holding company 100% ¢
Building Sustainability Services Limited England and Wales Utility metering company 100% ¢
Chandlers Point Manag; Company England and Wales Management company 100% *
K Site Limited England and Wales Property investment 100% *
Manchester Gas and Power Limited England and Wales  Utility trading company 100% *
Principal Agent Management Limited England and Wales Management company 100% *

Unify Energy Limited Eugland and Wales  Utility trading company 100% *

5% 33> 535> 3 >33 3> 3> 33 >5 53> > 33 3%3 35> 3>> 5> > >
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13 INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Country of Effective Proportion of
Joint Ventures incorporation Activity ordinary shares held
3 Sovereign Square Holdings | LLP England and Wales Holding company 50% *
3 Sovereign Square Holdings 2 LLP England and Wales Holding company 50% *
3 Sovercign Square LLP England and Wales Property development 50% * 1
Alderley Imaging Limited England and Wales Dormant 38%* 3
Aldertey Park Holdings Limited England and Wales Holding company 38% * 3
Alderley Park Limited England and Wales Property investment 38%* 3
Birmingham Health Innovation Campus Ltd England and Wales Property investment 50% * 2
Birmingham Science Limited England and Wales Holding company 50% * 2
Birmingham Technology (Propesty) Limited England and Wales Dormant 50% ¢ 2
Birmingham Technalogy (Property Once) Ltd England and Wales Dormant 50%* 2
Birmingham Technology ( Venture Capitaly itd ~ England aud Wales Dormant 5% * 2
Bruntwoad Circle Square 1 Limited England and Wales Development company 50% * 2
Bruntwood Circle Square 2 Limited England and Wales Development company 50% * 2
Bruntwood Circle Squarc 4 Limited England and Wales Development conipany 50% * 2
Bruntwood Circle Square 12 Limited England and Wales Development company 50% * 2
Bruntwood Circle Square 13 Limited England and Wales Development company 50% * 2
Bruntwood Platform Leeds Limited England and Wales Developnient company 50% * 2
Bruntwood Science Limited England and Wales Holding company 50% * 2
Bruntwood Scitech Ltd (formerly 2000 Ltd) England and Wales Holding company 50% ¢
Circle Square District Hofdings Company Ltd England and Wales Holding company 50%* 5
Circte Square District Company Ltd England and Wales Property development 50%°* 5
Circle Square Green Company Limited England and Wales Development company 50% * 2
Citylabs Ltd Eungfand and Wales Property investment 32%* 4
Citylabs 2.0 Lid England and Wales Development company N%* 4
Innovation Birmingham Limited England and Wales Property investnient 32% ¢ 2
Mancl Science P: hips Limited England and Wales Property investment 32%* 4
Manchester Technopark Limited England and Wales Dormant 32% ¢ 4
Mi 1dea Ltd England and Wales Management company 32% * 4
Salford lnnovation Park Ltd England and Wales Management company 32% * 4
Trafford Bruntwood LLP England and Wales Property development 50% ¢
Trafford Bruntwood (Clarendon House) LLP England and Wales Property development 50% *
Trafford Bruntwood (Stamford Quarter) LLP England and Wales Property investment 50% *
Trafford Bruntwood (Stretford Mall) LLP . England and Wales Property investitent 50% *
Associates
AMR Centre Limited England and Wales Research and development 2% 6
Liverpoo! Science Park Develoy Limited England and Wales Dormant 25% 7
Liverpool Science Park Limited England and Weles Property development 25% 7
Sciontec Developments Limited England and Wales Holding company 25%

* These companies are held through Bruntwood Limited and its subsidiary companies

1 - Held via 50% in tinboth 3 S ign Square Holdings | LLP and 3 Sovereign Square Holdings 2 LLP

2 - Held via 50% investment in Bruntwood Scitech Ltd (formerty Bruntwood 2000 Limited)

3 - Bruntwood Scitech Ltd holds a 76% investment in Alderiey Park Holdings Ltd, and its 100% owned subsidiaries Alderley Park Ltd
and Alderley Imagiag L4d

4 - Bruntwood Scitech Ltd holds a 64% in in Manchester Sci Par hips Ltd, and its 100% owned subsidiaries;
Citylabs L1d, Citylabs 2.0 Ltd, Citylabs 3.0 Lid, Manchester Technopark Ltd, Mi Idea Ltd and Salford Innovation Park Ltd

5 - Bruntwood Scitech Ltd holds a 50% investment in Circle Square District Holdings Company Ltd. Circle Square District Company Lid
is a 100% owned subsidiary of Circle Square District Holdings Company Ltd

6 - Held via Bruntwood Science Ltd, a 100% owned subsidiary of Bruntwood Scitech Ltd

7-Reldvia 25% i in Sci Devel Limited

~ registered address Union, Albert Square, Manchester, England, M2 6LW

MM regi d address; Tempsford Hall, Sandy, Bedfordshire, SG19 2BD

A registered address: The Box, Horseshoe Lane, Alderley Edge, England, SK9 7QP
A registered address: 19b70 Alderley Park, Macclesfield, Cheshire, SK10 4TG
AAAA registered address: Liverpool Science Park, 131 Mount Pleasant, Liverpool, L3 STF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended 30 September 2020

13 INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

The following subsidiary undertaking also consolidated at 30 September 2020 claimed exemption fiom audit under section 479A

Audit exemption
Companies Act 2006:

Country of
Subsidiaries incorporation.
Bruntwood ORS Limited England and Wales
Bruntwood Sixth Properties Limited England and Wales
Chandlers Point M; Company Limited  England and Wales
Principal Agent Management Limited England and Wales

Preparation and Filing Exemption

The following subsidiary undertakings also consotidated at 30 September 2020 claimed pli

company sccounts under section 394A Companics Act 2006:

Country of
Subsidiaries incorporation
Bruntwood Paragon A Limited England and Wales
Bruwitwood Paragon B Limited England and Wales

Company Effective Proportion of
Activity Number ordinary shares held
Developntent company 11372736 100%
Property Investment 08998755 100%
Management Company 02482170 160%
Management Company 08926929 100%

from prep of i 1} - - i

Company Effective Proportion of
Activity Number ordinary shaves held
Dormant 0445228 100%
Dormant 04452285 100%

3 Sovereign Square Holdings 1 LLP, 3 Sovereign Square Holdings 2 LLP and 3 Sovereign Square LLP arc joint venture parmerships with Kicr Property
Developments Limited. Circle Square District Holdings Company Limited and Circle Square District Company Limited are joint venture partnerships with
Affinity Living Limited. Trafford Bruntwood LLP, Trafford Bruntwood (Stamford Quarter) LLP, Trafford Bruntwood (Stretford Mall) LLP and Trafford
Bruntwood (Clarendon House) LLP are joint venture partnerships with Trafford Borough Council.

14 INCORPORATION OF NEW SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

On 20 November 2019 the Group set up the newly incarporated Bruntwood Bond 2 Ple. On 9 September 2020 the Group set up the newly incorporated

Bruntwood NQ Holdings Limited.
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15 DEBTORS Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors 23,176 23,497 - -
Amounts owed by related parties (note 25) 2,109 683 275 275
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 5,994 5,548
Amounts owed by joint venture undertaking (note 25) 39,550 21,721 - -
Carporation tax debtor 32 458 - -
Other debtors and prepaynients 49,756 56,446 4 -
115,323 102,805 6,273 5,823

Amounts falling due after more than one year:

- Other debtors P e — 23217 __ _ 30,782 . - -
23217 30,782 - -
138,540 133,587 6273 5,823

The balance due from group undertakings is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

16 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £000 -£000 £000
Trade creditors 9,269 8,328 - -
Other loans (note 18) - 52972 - -
Amounts owed to related parties (note 25) 1,389 1,114 1,389 1,114
Other creditors including ion and social security 34,147 29,656 - -
Accruals and deferred income 56,890 67,461 - 8
Amounts owed to joint venture undertaking (note 25) 299 419 - -
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 459 50
101,995 159,950 1,848 1,172

The balance due to group undertakings is unsecured, interest free and repayeble on demand.

17 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
Group Company
. 2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans (note 18) 188,995 198,903 - -
Other loans (nate 18) 358,639 239,315 - -
Derivative financial instruments (note 20) 2,782 2,194 - -
Other creditors 650 4,174 - -
551,066 444,586 - -

Included within other creditors is an amount relating to the share option schemes amounting to £0.6m (2019: £1.6m).
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18 LOANS

An analysis of the maturity of loans is given below: Group
2020 2019
Amounts falling duc within one year or on demand: £000 £000
Bonds maturing July 2020 - 50,000
Loan facility fees - (158)
Other loans maturing May 2020 - 3,130
. 52972

Amouats falling due between two and five years:
Bank loans maturing March 2022 190,000 200,491
Loan fucility fees (1,005) (1,588)
Loans maturing December 2022 115,453 117,652
Loan facility fees (430) (624)
Loans maturing May 2023 ) 11,074 10,679
Loan facility fees (74) (96)
Bonds maturing 2025 86,892 -
Loan facility fees (2,282) -
399,628 326,514

Amounts falling due in greater than five years:
Loans maturing 2026 25,895 -
Loan facility fees 315) -
Loans maturing December 2031 122,249 113,192
Loan facility fees (1,545) (1,488)
Other loans 1,722 -
148,006 111,704
The group's five-year syndicated bank foan maturing March 2022 is secured via a first fixed charge over the iel property held by B d 2000

Beta Portfalia Limited, Bruntwood Estates Beta Portfolio Limited, Brunhwood Estates Alpha Portfolio Limited, Bruntwood 2000 Alpha Portfolio Limited,
Bruntwood Comwall Street Limited, Bruntwood Albert Square Limited, Bruntwood MBS Retail Limited, and Bruntwood 2000 (NW Regen) Limited. There
is also a d p ] g from d Estates Holdings Limited. The margin over LIBOR ettached to this facility is 2%. Drawings on this
facility stand at £190.0m at 30 September 2020 (2019: £200.5m).

On 1 October 2019 Bruntwood Trafford Holdings Limited entered into a new seven year facility maturing 2026, drawing £25.9m. The margin over the EU
reference rate attached to this facility is 3.25%.

In June 2020 K Site Limited extended the three year facility it held expiring May 2021, by a further two years to May 2023. Drawings on this facility stand
at £11.1m at 30 September 2020 (2019:£10.7m).

On 25 February 2020 Bruntwood Bond 2 ple issued £110.0m of unsecured retail bonds. The bonds were issued with a five year term expiring 25 February
2025, and with a fixed coupon of 6% payable bi-annually. £19.1m of the bands were retained by Bruntwood Bond 2 plc and can be issued into the nwarket if
trading above par, A further £4.4m of bonds have subsequently been bought back by the group. £32.8m of the new bonds issued were used to settle the
outstanding 2020 secured retail bands in a bond for bond exch The inder of the ding 2020 retail bonds were repaid in full on 24 July 2020,
thus releasing £68.9m of property which was used to secure the 2020 bond.

The present market velue of the retail bonds shows a "mark to market® value of £82,285k.

On 4 March 2020 Bruntwood (Didsbury TP) Limited repaid the devefopment facility held with the North West Evergreen Fund in full (2019: balance drawn
£3.1im).

On 21 December 2016 the group agreed a new 15 year fixed rate loan facility with Aviva investars which expires in December 2031. The fixed rate attached
(o the facility is 3.46%. The facility is secured against the propertics held by Bruntwood AV Limited. On 14 August 2020 an additional £10m was drawn on
the facility attracting a 3.98% interest rate for 12 months, before decreasing to 2.98%. Drawings on the loan facility stood at £122.2m at 30 September 2020
(2019: £113.2m).

The group also has the use of an overdraft facility agreed with The Roya! Bank of Scotland with 8 maxinmm limit of £7.5m. This is secured by way of a
floating charge over the assets of Bruntwood Estates Beta Portfolio Limited.
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19 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

Group

2020 2019

Deferred tax £000 £060

Capital allowances in excess of depreciation 24,840 20,558

Other short-term timing differences (619) (966)

Tax losses carried forward (24) (1,263)

Property revaluations 36,684 35,082

Derivative contracts (529) (373)

Capital losses 36,684) {35,082)

23,668 17,956

Deferred tax ,

£000

At I October 2019 17,956

Provided during year 4,338

Adjustment in respect of prior years 1,374

At 30 September 2020 23!668
The amount of deferred tax rot provided on capital losses is £5.4m (2019: £2.4m).

20 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following table details the noti al pri ipal and ining terms of interest rate swap ding as at the reparting date:
Average contract
Notional principal value Falr value

2020 2019 2010 2019 2020 2019

% % £000 £000 £000 £000

Less than | year . - - - - .

1 to 2 years 1.06% . 180,000 - (2,782) B

2to S years - 1.06% - 180,000 - {2,194)

180,000 180,000 (2,782!, {2,194).

Interest rates swaps
The group continues to hold a forward start swap at a rate of 1.055% maturing on 31 March 2022 to hedge the floating rate funding. In line with the
Facility Agreement, the swap has been split at origination such that £45m has been allocated to each bank involved in the facility. As at 30

Septeniber 2020 the principal value of such swaps is £180m (2019: £180m).

The group will settle the difference between the fixed and floating interest on a net basis.
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21 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Group and company :
Allotted, issued and fully paid: . H

Nominal 2020 2019 ' ;
Number: Class: Value: £ £
20,935,095 Non-vating ‘'C' Ordinary shares £1 20,935,095 20,935,095 :
28,515,632 Non-voting ‘D)’ Ordinary D1 shares £0.99 28,230,476 28,230,476 !
31,316,309 D2' Ordinary Shares £0.01 313,163 313,163 i
1,083,359 Nou-vating 'A’ Ordinary shares £l 1,083,359 1,013,501} :
40,000 Non-voting "A" Preference shares £1 40,000 40,000 i
50,000 Non-voting 'B' Preference shares £1 50,000 50,000 H

- 50,652,093 50,582,235

During the year the company completed a share issue of 69,858 ordinary A shares at £4.51. . :

The group and company's other reserves are as follows:

The profit and loss reserve represents cumulative profit or losses, including unrealised profit on the of i properties,
net of dividends paid and other adjustments.

The share premium reserve ins the premiwm arising on issue of equity shares, net of issue expenses,

The capital red ion reserve rep lidated profit and loss reserves considered to be non-distributable and therefore capitalised in

v 1k

gh group isitions and uctions,

prior years arising pred q
The group's ather reserve is as follows:

The other reserve arose on lidati llowing the group uction that took place on in 2012, It represented the difference between

the nominal value of the shares issued by the company and the nominal vatue of the shares issued by its subsidiary in the share for stiare

exchange.

i
'
1
?
|
|
i
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BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

22 RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST AND TAX TO CASH GENERATED BY OPERATIONS

2020 2019
Group only £000 £000
Profit before interest and tax 4,906 73,119
Adjustment for:
Depreciation 1,883 1,453
Amortisation of intangible assets 35 35
Loss/(gain) on revaluation of investment propertics 21,291 (31,940)
Movement in fair value of derivative instruments 588 3,256
Gain on disposal of i p i (852) (391)
Qain on disposal of development land - (1,973)
(Gain)/lass on disposal of fixed assets (14) 109
Other exceptional profit - (579)
Share of results of joint ventures 9.843 3,7177)
Operating cash flow before movement in working capita) 37,680 39,312
D in develop: in progr - 12,217
Decrease/ (increase) in debtors 12,234 (8,189)
Decrease in creditors (14,706) (23,950)
Cash generated by operations 35,708 19,390
23 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASES
At 30 September 2020, the group had amounts contracted for but not provided for of £9.8m for capital expenditure (2019: £16.5m).

At 30 September 2020, total mini; lease pay under Mabl ing leases are as follows:
2020 2019
Leases which expire: £000 £000
Within one year 673 884
Within two to five years 2,692 3,535
After five years 59,993 81,895
63,358 86,314

At 30 September 2020 the future mini lease pay ivable under non-c Labl ing leases:
2020 2019
£000 £000
Within one year 47,015 45218
Within two to five years 62,487 74,877
After five years 47,410 45,891
156,912 165,986

24 ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY AND CONTROLLING PARTY

Bruntwood Group Limited is the ultimate parent company of the largest group of which the company is a member and for which group financial
statements are drawn up. The vltinmate controlling party is considered by the directors to be C G Oglesby, close members of his family and Oglesby

family trusts.
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

The group has taken advantage of the exemption under the terms of Section 33 FRS 102 not to disclose related party transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries

within the group.

During the year ended 30 September 2019 the group entered into the

the Group holding a 50% share in Bruntwood SciTech Limited and its associated subsidiaries:

£a1t

'S

with Br

d SciTech Group companies, related parties by nature of

Income reccivable in respect of service level agreements for the provision of facilities management, utilities supply, fixed recharges
in respect of overheads and project and development management;

2020 2019
£000 £000

Alderey Park Limited 17,875 9,093
Birmingham Enterprise Wharf Limited 317 -

Bruntwood Circle Square | Limited 1,090 3,311
Bruntwood Circle Square 2 Limited 315 142
Bruntwood Circle Square 4 Limited 422 184
Bruntwood Circle Square 12 Limited 787 -

Bruntwood Circle Square |3 Limited 20 -

Bruntwoad Platform Leeds Limited 1,273 2,555
B d Science M Services Limited 4,068 3,46t
Circle Square District Holdings Company Ltd - 259
Circle Square Green Company Limited 25 16
Citylabs 2.0 Limited 354 141
Citylabs 4.0 Limited 656 883
Citylabs Limited 750 1,012
Innovation Birmingham Limited 3,590 1,125
Manch Science P hips Limited 3,443 5,576
MI-IDEA Limited 2 2

Exp payable and purchase credits ble in respect of service charge expenditure i d on behalfof B d Group
campanies and internal rent payable;

Alderey Park Limited (323) 2,497
Bruntwood Circle Square 1 Limited 180 .80
Bruntwood Platform Leeds Limited 2 44
B d Science M Services Limited 70 382
Circle Square District Company Ltd - 261
Citylabs Limited - 41
Citylabs 2.0 Limited 17 -

Innovation Birmingham Limited 27 87
Manch Science P hips Limited Il 393
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

During the year the group received income from Trafford Bruntwood LLP of £729k, Trafford Bruntwood (Stretford Mall) LLP of £903k and Trafford
Bruntwood (Stamford Quarter) LLP of £1,010k. These are related parties duc to the Group's 50% share in the LLPs. Incomi¢ received was in respect of

devel and fees camed.

During the yeor expenses were payable to 3 Sovereign Square LLP of £26k in respect of the Group's share of empty property costs. This is a related party

due to the Group's 50% share in the LLP. Income received was in respect of utilities supply.

During the year the group received income fram Roundthom Group Pension and Life Assurance Scheme of £177K, a related party due to the schemes
- trustees Mr M J Oglesby, Mr C G Oglesby and Ms K J Vokes all being directors of this company. Income received was in respect of utilities supply. )

The following amounts with joint venture undertakings were outstanding at the reporting dates:

Alderley Park Limited

Bruntwood Circle Square | Limited (Oxford House)

Bruntwood Circle Square 2 Limited
Bruntivood Circle Square 4 Limited
Bruntwood Platform Leeds Limited

B d Science M Services Limited

Bruntwood SciTech Limited

Circle Square Green Conipany Limited
Citylabs 2,0 Limited

Citytabs Limited

Innovation Birmingham Limited

Mancl Science P: hips Limited
Mi-IDEA Limited

Trafford Bruntwood (Stamford Quarter) LLP
Trafford Bruntwood (Stretford Mall) LLP
Trafford Bruntwood LLP

3 Sovereign Square LLP

Alderley Park Limited

Bruntwood Circle Square 1 Limited
Bruntwood Circle Square 2 Limited
Bruntwood Circle Square 4 Limited
Bruntwood Platform Leeds Limited
n. d Set

M Services Limited

Bruntwood SciTech Limited

Circle Square Green Company Limited
Citylabs 2.0 Limited

Citylabs 4.0 Limited

Citylabs Limited

Innovation Birmingham Limited
Manchester Science Partnerships Limited
MI-IDEA Limited

Trafford Bruntwood LLP

BRUNTWOOD GROUP LIMITED

Debtor Creditor
2020 2020
£000 £000

3,145 -
69 39
162 -
154 -
220 2
799 46
32,851 -
13 -
16 -
106 -
398 -
374 -

163 189

2019 2019
£000 £000

54 -
673 4
50 14

13 -

17 .
26 39
259 0

20,101 -

35 -
78 -

241 87
98 233

70 1
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The following amounts with other related parties were outstanding at the reporting dates:

Debtor Creditor
2020 2020
£000 £000
Roundthom Group Pension and Life Assurance Scheme 141 -
The Oglesby Charitable Trust 275 -
Trafford Borough Council - 36,968
Unify Management Solutions Limited 149 -
CubicWorks Limited 156 -
2019 2019
£000 £000
Abney 2003 Limited =~ - N 1,114
Roundthom Group Pension and Life Assurance Scheme - -
The Oglesby Charitable Trust 408 -
Trafford Borough Council 275 10,679

Abney 2003 Limited is a related party due to its shareholding in this company.

The Oglesby Charitable Trust is a related party as the trustees include Mr M J Oglesby, Mr C G Oglesby and Ms K J Vokes all being directars of this
company.

Trafford Borough Council is a related party due to being 50/50 joint venture partner in Trafford Bruntwood LLP, Trafford Bruntwood (Stretford Mall) LLP
and Trafford Bruntwood (Stamford Quarter) LLP. Interest of 4% plus EU reférence rate was diarged on the balnace throughout the year and expensed to the

profit and loss account.

Unify Management Solutions Limited and CubicWorks Limited are related parties as the directors include Mr C G Oglesby and Ms K J Vokes, both being
directors of this company.

All related party balances are unsecured, do not accrue interest and are expected to be settled in cash.

26 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 1 October 2020 d Limited disposed of its i in Br d Develop Holdings Limited, Salford Innovation Park Limited,

Bruntwood Energy Services Limited and Bruntwood Circle Square 14 Limited to Bruntwood NQ Holdings Limited for book value. Bruntwood NQ Holdings
Limited and Bruntwood Limited are both 100% subsidiaries of Bruntwood Group Lirmited.

50

PR



